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Our company

Shepherd Neame 1s a family controlled brewery and pub operator.

We believe that characteristics central to our success include

An mtegrated brewing and pub business

A commitment to quality and integricy

The passionate nterest of the many people who have dedicated themselves
to Shepherd Neame

A commutment to Faversham and the wider community of Kent

A long-term view of the business

We are extremely proud to be Britans Oldest Brewer
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Chalrman’e statement

“We have achieved record turnover and
beer volume. a significant surplus over

net book value 1n the valuation of our

pub estate and created sufficient cash
flow to repay debt ahead of schedule.”

Results

I am pleased to be able to report another successful year for the
company for the 52 weeks to 25 June 2011 We had 1 particularly
strong second half and have agamn achieved record turnover and
total beer volume, reported a simuficant surplus over net book vilue
i the valuation of our pub estate and created suffictent cash How to
repay debt ahead of schedule

These are indicators of a company 1n good health at a ime when
market conditions are challenging, competitton aintense 1nd when
the economy 15 weak and our consumers are seeing a dechne 1in

real incomes

Turnover for the year ended 25 June 2011 increased by 5 2% to
£121 3 Operating profit before exceputionals 15 up 3 3% w0

£12 3m and profit before tax and excepronals 1s up % 7% Statutory
profit before tas 15 down 25 6% to £6 5m s we report lower
profits on property disposaks and recognise an imp urment charge

Basic earnings per share before aveptionals (adjusted carmings
per share) are up 17 (% to 46 2p

Cash flow and financing

1)uning the year we have generated £18 9m (2010 £18 4m)
earnings before exceptional items, mnterest, tax depreciation and free
trade loan discounts

Our cash investment i capital expenditure during the year was
L9 8m (21M0 £8 0m) This mcludes £3 4m for the purchaw of
two pubs to be run under tenancy and three unhcensed properties
adjacent to exssung pubs which we will develop m due course
We realised proceeds of £2 5m from assets sales (2010 £35 9m)
including the disposal of eight pubs and realised property profits
of £04m (2010 £1 9m)

We hive generated a net cash inflow before financing of
L1 8m (2010 £9 4m) and reduced our year end net debt from
£66 6mto £649m
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We have repud and cancelled £ 5m of the £15m five yeir term
loan taken out in 2009 and duc to mature in May 2014 This was
pard down in two tranches, £3 75m mn August 2010 and £1 25m
m May 2011 We retain substannal headroom on our commmitted
facihties of £20 1m at the year end

Pub estate valuation

The Board announced i October 2010 its intention to undertake
a directors” valuation of us pub cstate m hne with our policy to do
so every seven years Under the Company’s accounung policies the
balance sheet reflects 1997 values wiath subsequent additions 4t cost
The new valuation will not be reeorded in the accounts

The valuation covers hcensed property only and excludes
unhcensed assets and the brewcry site 360 pubs were ncluded in
the exercise and were valued on an individual existing use basis by
the Comp nv's professionlly qualified stiff The Board s pleased
to announce that the result of the valuation 1s a surplus over book
value of £68m

An umparrment review wis underethen at the same teme and this
has led to an excepuonal charge i the 2011 a2ccounts of £1 9m
on 13 pubs

Dividend

A final drvidend of 19 00p (20610 18 35p} per £1 A Ordinary
Share and 0 380p (2010 0 367p) per 2p'B Orcinary Share has
been proposed by the Board giving total dividends for the year
of 23 80p (2010 23 10p) per £1*A Ordinary Share and 0 476p
(2010 0 462p) per 2p B Ordmary Share This gives a total
increase w dividend per share for the year of 3%

The final dividend will be paid on 28 Gctober 2011 to sharcholders
on the register at the close of business on 12 Ocrober 2011




Board of Directors

Ken Littlefair our Finance and IT Director 1s due to retire in
March 2012 and we are n the proccss of recrutting his successor
Ken joned the company m 2000 and during his thne with the
company has made an outstanding contribution parucularly in
modernising and developing our IT systems 1miproving business
processes and the qualiny of management mformanon flow

We wish hun well in his retirement and will announce his
SUCCESSOT as s00N as an appoutment 15 made

Industry overview

Since 2007 the UK Beer and Pubs Industry has undergone major
change The cumulative impact of the smeking ban, large increases
n excise duty and the recession have had a verv negatnve impact
on on trade beer consumpuon but it has also seen the emergence
of new growth areas, such as world lagers and prenmum bottled
ale n the off trade and food and accommodauion 1 pubs
Shepherd Neame has re-aligned its business and investment
prionities to address these new trends The Chief Executnes
repert describes our current activittes ind our abihity to explont
this changing marketplace

It 15 disappointing however to note that the Governmment has so

far failled to recogmise the importance of beer and pubs to the
economy and the social and cultural hfe of the UK or to live up to
1ts favourable statements at the nme of the Elecnon We continue
to miht strong represcntition to the Government that the
planned duty increases will make an unfair and unsustanable
posSION even worse

The operauon of the tied house system remamns under scruany
following a review by the Busmess Innovanion and Skills Select
Committee 1 2010 This Committee re-convened n July 2011
to update its findings, 1nd will make 3 further mnnouncement
i September

Qutlook and summary

Shepherd Neame has made signuaficant progress this year and over
the lst fow years The company stands out for 1ts local market
knowledge its attrtude to quality and customer service, and the
strength of 1ts beer and pub portfolio This forms the basis of

a sustainable strategy that the management team pursue with
energy, focus and chruy of purpose

The global economic outlook has deteriorated 1 recent months
and our consuiners are likelv to experience a further fall i real
income In addion we expect anHhtionary pressures in raw
material prices to 1mpact on production costs 0 the commg year

However an a local basis we are encouraged by the ongoing
economic and cultural regeneratton of East Kent with the opentng
of the Turner Contemporary Gallery m Margate the New
Marlowe Theatre 1n Canterbury and the announcument of the
Enterprise Zone at Dscoverv Park in Sandwich Also we beleve
our business 1s very well potioned to tike rdvantage of 1ny benefit
which mav arise as a comequence of the 2012 London Olympics

We will continue to pursue our long-term strategy of investing
fully 1 our brands and pubs <o as to reean the strength and idenury
of the busess and T have every confidence that we will continue
10 deliver value for shareholders with dividend growth and a strong
balance sheet for future expansion

M H Templeman
Chairman

www shepherdneame co uk
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Qur Beers

Our main driver of beer volume growth has
been Asahi Super Dry which has mcreased
by 16 8%.

Shiepherd Neante anrnial report and accounts 2011

2011 BREWING INDUSTRY
INTERNATIONAL AWARDS -
GOLD MEDALFOR ASAHI AND
OVERALL CHAMPIOM LAGER




Chief Executive’s review

“QOur high quality pubs, intimate knowledge
of the local market, diverse beer portfolio,
modern brewery, excellent systems and
focus on food-led pubs has enabled us

to respond to market changes and align

our business with the growth sectors
in our industry.”

Overview

Thas has been another good year for the company with a strong
performance in most areas of the business We have improved the
offer n our pubs, enyoved the benefits of recent capital mvestments
1 our estate, grown our beer sales and mvested to develop our
marketing capability Throughout we have mamtained very high
standards of product quality and customer service for which our
efforts have been recognised wath a series of presugious awards

Qur high quality pub estate, our innmate knowledge of the local
mairket om diverse beer portfolio our modern efficient bicwery
and cxeellent systems and our focus on food-led pubs have enabled
us to respond to the recent market changes and align our business
with the growth sectors m our industiy We are contfident of the
future and clear 1 our strategy to build a strong beer portfolio

of speciality ales and world lagers and a lngh quahitv pub and

hotel business

Qur turnover was up 5 2% The mamn drivers for growth were food
and accommaodation sales i our managed houses, strong sales
supermarkets and another excellent performance from Asaht Super
IIry We belicve that all these areas will contnue to provide
opportunities for the company Furthermore as we increase our
wvestment 11 licensee trammg and drgzital and brand marketimg

we believe we can enhance our overall service and experience for
the consumer

But, there are three areas of challenge in our marketplace at present

* Raw matenal inflauon has returned 1 the second half of the
finncial vear and we face substantial increases in cereal and gliss
prices 1n the conung year

* The nwonal market for cask beer 1s under intense compenuve
pressure as many large customiers are trading down and as the
number of micro brewers continues to grow as a result of the
advantages they emjoy from Progressive Beer Duty

»  Small wet-led tenanted pubs i low mcome areas are
expeniencing a2 dechne 1n sales This 1s now a small part of our
business and our strategy 15 to invest to improve the offer or to

sell the pub

This dafficult economice envirormment s not helped by the
Government continuing to put up excise duty by 2% above
inflinon every year In the lst vear we paid /.28 5moin excise
duty on our own brewed beers compared to £ 19 5m 1n 2007
This 15 a haghly damaging tax that reduces the potental for
investment and growth and 15 a miusguided policy

Brewery and brands

The total UK market for beer dechned by 7 1% for the year to
June 2011 Bue for the fourth year ina row we have outperformed
the market

In the period from June 2007 to June 2011 the total UK beer
market declined by 17 1% of which the on trade has declined by
25% as a consequence of the cumulatve timpact of the smoking
ban a step thange 1in exase duty pohey ind the cconomic
downturn The decline though 1s not umversally experienced —
indeed miany outlets enjoy substantial growth — but 15 most
signuficant where the ofter his not been developed to meet
changing consumer needs Over the ame period off trade

beer market volumes have hedd broadls level Within the total
market there has also been a shift 1n category trends, with growth
m world lagers and prennum bottled ales 1n particular During this
four year period our own beer volume has grown by & 1%

In 2011, our total beer volume grew by 4 0% (2010 +4 8%) and
own beer volume by 2 6% (2010 +38%) The heavy snow and 1ce
in December adversely affected the ontrade at that ume but we
benefited from warm weather and the Rovil Wedding i April
June 2011 was down on the very strong comparables of the
previous year when the football world cup was staged

The nvestments we have made 1n modermising our brewery have
enabled us to react positively to posinen our portfolio to take
advantage of these market trends And for the third year in a row
we have continued to denve benefits from the implementatnion of
new systems processes and plant

Of particular note this year are hagh botthng hine efficency ught
nventorv mamigement rpd stock turns, excellent order fill and
product availabihty and outstanding customer service Our botthing

www shepherdneame couk %
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Onr Wine

In recent years we have developed an enviable
portfolio of private label wine brands in
partnership with some of the world’s best
winemakers.

Shepherd Neame annual report and accounts 2011

WE HAVE CREATED
THE MATUMI RANGE
‘WITH THE AWARD
WINNING TEAM

AT LOURENSFQORD
ESTATE




Chief Executive’s review continued

FIMALIST 2010 AWARDS
FOR SUPPLY CHAIN INNOVATION

line 1s now delwering 41% more output smce commissioning in
2009 with higher quality of packaging and product Qur plant
mvestiments, generally, have also enabled us to achieve savings

in utthties 1 an inflationary emarenment

We now have 1 modern brewery and logistics infrastructure We are
currently working on an integrated business planning process to
develop our finaneial and demand foree sung and enable more new
product development

In spite of our success in 1chieving greater efficiency nd reducing
cost we face 1 sigiuficant rise n the cost of maleed barlev and ghass
m the comng year

I am dehghted that our production 1nd distribution team’s efforts
have been recognised 1 a2 number of important areas namely the
Brewing Industry International Awards 2011 where we won three
trophies, including gold for Asahi draught and the Manufacturer of
the Yeir Awards 2010 where Shepherd Neame was winner in the
Supply Chan and Logisucs category We were also a finalist i the
Chartered Institute of Logistics and Transport Awards 2010 for
Supply Chain Innavation

During the year we have reviewed our lager portfohio and arc
ceasing production of Haolsten Export We are keen however to
conunue to develop our portfolio of world beers and nctwork of
international partners Since the year end we have concluded an
agreement with the Boston Beer Company to jointly devilop the
market for Samuel Adwms Boston lager in the UK and certamn
European markets

We are also pleased that Asahi brewerics have agreed to mcrease
their level of direct marketing investment i the UK for a further
five years to supplement cur own wnvestment and help build on
the success of this brand

Total volume of own beer sold during the year was 239 000 Bl3s
(2010 233 000 BBs) Our main driver of volume growth has been
Asaht Super ry which has increased by 16 8% We have contnued
aur strategn of focusing sales actvaty e high profile on tride
accounts 11 London and key metropohtan areas We have gained
verv good draught distribution nd a high profile for the brand

We have focused our marketing activity on sponsorship in music
art and entertainment with our Asahi All Areas (AAA) imitiative
During the year we have estzblished a key partnership with the
Rowvil Albere Hall

Spitfire performed strongly with growth of 2 3% The growth
has been driven in the grocerv channel where we have expanded
distribution and mereased rate of sale Qur relationship and
performance with the grocers has been particularly good during
the year In national on trade, sales have been less good as a result
of dechine m the overall market and increased competition
However 1 the free on trade where we have direct relavonships
with customers in our local region, sales of cask Spitfire hwe
grown by 16 3%

Bishops Finger too has contimued its recent strong performance
with volume up 3 9%

As we butld the quality of our beer portfolio and sales reach

we are also developing our marketing to ensure we have a clear
posttioning and strong manigement of our brinds Durig the

last year we have appointed two brand managers three digital
marketing executives and established an n-house communicinions
team Whalst this s an 1mncrease in overheads this team wall enable us
to be more effecuve at driving promotional activity and awareness
of our beers and our pubs and masunise the benefit of the
mmestment 1n our new website

Wine volume grew by 1 8% In recent years we have developed an
enviable portfoho of private label brands in conjunction with some
of the world’s best winemakers and 1 the last year have introduced
Matumu from the Lourensford Estate in South Africa This portfolio
enables us and our customers to sell excellent wines from the
highest quality estates at prices our consumers can afford

Finally, our visitor centre performs a very important role in
attracting customers and engaging them 1n the acuvities of the
brewery 1 am delghted that the team has won a number of
mmportant awards during the year, namely the Visit England Awards
for Excellence, Small Visitor Attraction of the Year a Green Tourism
Business Scheme Silver Award and the Group Travel Awards Best
Luttle Treasure of Britan

wwwshepherdneime co uk 07




Our Food

We served over 1 million meals in our
managed houses during the year and food
spend per head has increased by 6.7%
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LOCALLY LANDED fRESH
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Chief Executive’s review continued

WINNER SUPPLY CHAIN AND LOGESTICS

Pub operations

Qverview

At the year end we operated 359 (2010 363) pubs and hotels of
which 316 (2010 322) are frechold Of these 44 (2010 43) are
managed and 315 tenanted or leased {2010 320)

At the begmmng of the year, we were concerned about the
potential impact of the tax rises and the level of consumer
confidence throughout the yenr |his concern remaimns but during
the second half of the year we have experienced strong sales of
food n particular

The average earmings before interest tax depreciation amortisation
nd before rene payable (EBIIDAR) of our manged estate his
grown bv 8 3% during the year and of our cenanted and leased
estate by 0 8%

In the last vear we have mnvested £3 1m (2010 £3 8im) in the pub
estate We have achacved excellent results where we have made
recent investrnents n both tenanted and managed pubs, supported
by good traming, marketing and food devilopment

Shepherd Neame s rated by the British Institute of Innkeepers as
one of the top licensed trade trammg providers We plan to merease
our resource 1 thss arca to support new licensees and to back our
mvestment strategy

Eating out m pubs offers great value for money and an excellent
casual dining experience Both our managed and tenanted houses
are takimg advantage of this trend Our key focus 1s to improve the
quahty of environment and quahty of offer to an ever mcreasmgly
cost conscrous consumer Last year we appointed a head
development chef for the first tme We have achieved excellent
food results in our managed houses by improved menu design
MLl engincering, recipe control and food presentation, and we
have mamuamed margns This builds on the changes in the food
procurement strategy of previous years

In October 2010 we launched our web to print facihtv and our
new website with a microsite for each pub to enable more social
media interaction with our custoniers We have since then recruited
our digital marketing tearmn and have been successful i driving
triffic and engagement iround our web site

We hwe idenufied good opportumties for future mvestment and
4 Pr

plan to increase the number of small investment projects in the

coming yeir

In 2009 we announced the plan to sell 35 small commumty pubs
th"l[ no IOchr ﬁtlcd our rcqmrt‘lncntj SIIICC thnt time we h'\VC
disposcd of 28 pubs, including aght i thy financal yoar and s at
17 September 2011 a further two

Managed pubs and hotels
Qur retul performance has been sirong with tonl revenues up 2 9%

Like-for-itke sales were up 7 4% (2010 +0 7%) with hquor +5 6%
(2010 -0 7%), food +11 1% 2010 +3 ¥4} and accommodanon
+9 7% (2010 +0 1%)

We served over 1 nullion meak 1n our managed houses during
the year and food spend per head has increased by 6 7% to £9 12
@10 L8 55)

Revenue per avallable room {RevPARY increased by 2 3% to
37 73 (2010 £34 53) We currently operate 180 lcting rooms
1n the managed estatc and have a further 204 rooms 1n the
tenanted estate

Since the year end we have contracted to 1equire the Fayreness
Hotel Kingsgate which overooks Botinv Bay one of Kent'’s finest
beaches This 15 a 29-bedroom hotel with excellent function
ficihties This zequisition will mcrease the rotal number of luing
rooms 1 the managed estate 10 209 We have also acquired the
property adjacent to The Sun Inn, Faversham which will emble us
to expand the number of letting bedrooms at this site We contimue
to seek opportunities to expand our accommodanon business
which swve believe provides good sustamable earnings

We have carried out a number of major mvestment projects during
the vear, with the largest of these at The Crown Hotel Blackheath
where £0 7m has been ivested Performance in the firse few
months since re-opeming has been above expectation We have

also Liyoved strong porformancd from the siguficant mvestinent
projects undertaken in 2010, wath the Ship & Trades Chatham
Marmame performmng particuhirly well

www shephenineame co uk
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Our Pubs

The Crown Hotel, Blackheath where
L0 7w has been nvested. Perforinance
in the first few months since re-opening
has been above expectation.

Shepherd Meame annual report and sccounes 2011

THE DOVE DARGATE

WE NEVER CEASE TO BE IMPRESSED BY THE
ENTHUSIASM ENERGY ENTREPRENELRIAL FLAIR
AND RETAIUNG INGENUITY OF OUR LICENSEES




Chief Exccutive’s review continued

Tenanted pubs

Tenanted trade revenue fell by 1 5% (2010 +1 8%) as we divest of a
number of our smaller wet-led pubs Like-for-like EBITDAR. per
pubs fell by 3 0% (2010 -3 8%) but average FBITDAR mcreased by
0 8% as we improved the overall quality of our estate

During the period we have made rwo high qualty additions to the
tenanted estate The Parrot Canterbury and The Cock, Boughton
Monchelsea We have also acquired the property and courtyard
adjacent to Casevs one of our pubs 1 central Canterbury so that
we can provide outade space

In line wath other pub operators, we adopted a new Code of
Pracuce for the operanon of tenanted houses 1n January 2011
following accreditation by the Brutish Institute of Innkeeping

We are encouraged by the quality of people applying o become
our business partners and have seen considerable uphft m indvadual
outlets when new appontments are ninde We continue to find
further ways to unprove our tersante.d pu,l\'lgk,

We beheve tenancies offer an excellent business partnership and
have a strong future We never cease to be umpressed by the
enthustisiu energy entreprencurnyl Aur and retuhing mgonury of
our hcensees

We are small enough to offer targeted support where 1t 1s most
needed and to have strong personal relationships, but above all to
remain Heable to the needs and aspiratons of our heensees and
transparent and open 1 our dealings with them Ac the year end
we have introduced a new scheme to ncentivise our tenants on
standards and volume

Current trading

We have enjoyed a positive start to the year and are performmyg

in line with expectation In the 12 weeks to 17 September 2011
we have traded well with total beer volume up 6 9% hhke-for-like
managed house sales up bv 6 5% and improving trends within the
tenanted estate However, we are €Xpertencing some margin pressure
w out beer business

Summary

This has been a good vearin a very challenging consumer climate
Our beer volume, food and 2ccommeadation sales have outperformed
the market and cur brandand pub portfolios have become stronger
We are confident that mvestment m buldding our mirkenng teum
will deliver more effecave consuimer engagement m the future

Qur strategy 15 clear consstent and focused on delnertng long-
term sustaimable growth Qur balance shuet 15 strong underlmed
by the recent pub estate revalution Qur cash How from operating
wtvities 15 sufficaent both to pay dovwn debt and be able to 1equire
new assets m the same vear

We emplov people and enjoy partnerships with heensees, suppliers
and customers who are highly commutted to the suceess of
Shepherd Neame This support ennbles the company to perform
at very high levels, as evidenced by the number of outstanding
awards won this year

However, the general economic ind industry outlook remams
challenging as we face the twin assues of dochne i consuner
meomes and infl it1on w onr cost bise Bur duspite these wdverse
trends we beheve that we are pursumg a strategy that will make
our beer and pub busmess a stronger performer in the industry
for the future

J B Neame
Chief Executive

www shepherdneame co uk
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An lmportant Industry

“It 15 disappointing to note that the Government has so far failed
to recogmise the importance of beer and pubs to the economy
and the social and cultural life of the UK m#tempteman | charman

£3-1 BILLION

THE AMOUNT OF EXCISE
DUTY PAID ON BEER

85 CALORIES

CONTAINED IN A %2 PINT
OF BEER (175ML GLASS
OF WINE 119 CALORIES)

68 MILLION

PINTS WERE PRODUCED BY

SHEPHERD NEAME IN 2011

Shepherd Neame anwual report and accnunn 201t

THE IMPORTANCE OF BEER

BEER AND PUBS CONTRIBUTE
E28 BILLION TO THE UK ECONOMY —
MORE THAN THE CLOTHES
RETAILING INDUSTRY

£28.5 MILLION

THE AMOUNT OF EXCISE
DUTY PAID ON BEER BY
SHEPHERD NEAME IN 2011

35%
THE INCREASE

IN BEER DUTY SINCE 2008

90*
OF ALL BEER

SOLD IN BRITAIN IS MADE
IN BRITAIN FROM BRITISH
RAW MATERIALS

2/3 OF THE AVERAGE

RECOMMENDED DAILY
INTAKE OF SILICON IS
CONTAINED IN
1 PINT OF BEER

Q5%
WE SCURCE

OF THE HOPS USED IN OUR
CASK ALES FROM KENT [

MORE THAN 1 ,400

LOCAL SUPPLIERS ARE USED
BY SHEPHERD NEAME




THE IMPORTANCE OF PUBS

920,000 PEOPLE WORK IN

BRITAIN'S PUBS, BREWERIES AND

THE SUPPLY CHAIN

1 5 MILLION

PEOPLE SOCIALISE IN
THE NATION'S PUBS
EACH WEEK

EACH PUB ON AVERAGE
CONTRIBUTES

£107,000

IN TAX EVERY YEAR

C.4,500 00

WORK IN SHEPHERD NEAME
PUBS AND THE BREWERY

THE AVERAGE UK
CONSUMER GOES CUT
FOR FOOD AND DRINK

1 98TIMES A YEAR

EACH PUB ON AVERAGE
CONTRIBUTES

80,000

TO THE LOCAL ECONOMY
EVERY YEAR

MORE THAN 1 MILLION
MEALS ARE SCLD IN QUR
MANAGED HOUSES
EVERY YEAR

MORE THAN1 BILLION
MEALS ARE SERVED IN PUBS
EVERY YEAR

EACH PUB ON AVERAGE
CONTRIBUTES

2,500

TO LOCAL CHARITABLE
CAUSES EVERY YEAR

WE SUPPORT
MORE THAN

400

SPORTING, CULTURAL
AND COMMUNITY EVENTS

www shepherdnaoime couk
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Our Enviommncnit

We have contracted to acquire the Fayreness
Hotel, Kingsgate which overlooks Botany
Bay, one of Kent’s finest beaches.

Shepherd Neame anmual seport and accounts 2011

GREEN TOURISM BUSINESS
SCHEME AWARD




Corporate social responsibihity

Responsible retailing .
Shepherd Neame 1s comnutted to operatuig pubs and hotels of

high quality which take their responsibility to their customers and
communines serioushy We beheve a pub s a public amunity that

should provide a friendly safe environmment for 1ts customers

*  We support the Drinkawre Trust and require our tennes ard
mamgers to support our Socil Responsibility Charter

= We support the Challenge 21 imuative and run 1 Myseery
[Drinker scheme to monmor comphance

= We were one of the first companies to team up with the Bl
for a project i which schools invite cxperts, mcluding pub
landlords to help educate a responsible approwch to drinking

* We spoensor the Kent Peer Drugs Drama Competition in
which Year 11 pupils in Kent compete for a 1 000 prize for
the best short play thae helps cducate Year 9710 pupils on 1ssues
such as alcohol

*  We 1re participanss in mmtiatives such s the Kent Community
Alcohol Partnership, that have brought together councils the
police and the health service with alcohol producers and
retatlers 1t the local level

-

+ Shepherd Neime executves are 2ctive tn a number of public
debates relevant to the beer mdustry Chief Executive Jonathan
Neame 15 Chairman of the Future Beer Group of the BBPA and -
15 pronminent n the debate on alcoho] duty Tenanted Trade
Director George Barnes 1s South Ease Regronal Char of the
Institute of Licensing and sits on the South East advisory panel of
Pub 15 the Hub Retal Director Nigel Buntng s Churmmn of
the Independent Famtly Broewers of Britain Operanons Group

Environment

Shepherd Neame 1s very proud of the standards it achieves for
environimental management in activities such as raw matenals -
handhng water supply, transport pollution control, waste

management and recyching

« Wt were the first UK brewery to attain full accredianion for the
1SO 14001

We hive responded to the expinding off-tride market while
adhering te otir company values The brewery s new botthing
hall was opened in June 2010 at a cost of £3 5 million Tt has
enablicd us to reduce our encrigy and water consumpnion,
particularh by switching from tunnel pasteurisition to flash
pasteurssation Over the past decade we have reduced our encrgy
consumption n the borthng hall by 27% The brewery has ako
recently switched to the exclusive use of hightweight glass for s
bortled beers resulting 1n a saving of 20% n glass usage

We are currently undertabung 4 waste water treatiment project
We have invested 1 a state of the art system umed it
mimmising our 1mpact ¢n our local environment

As mmuficturers we rely hewily on w compressors We have
recenth mvested £10,000 10 an intelligent onhine momtorning
system to control consumpnion and will improve enurgy
efficiency by up to 10%

We work well within the Governments knergy Efficient Quotient

Wi run Euro V Volvo trucks equipped wath 1 new generition
of diesel engrnes with lower fuel consumption and extremely
low enussions

We provide free bicycles for staff that live within three nules of
the bruwery

Qur PDX wort boiling systemn uses direct stewn mjecnon to
heat the wort in-line — this has reduced our energy
consumption during this styge of the process by 50%

We were the first UK brewery to be wvarded a Feed Matertib
Assurince Scheme ceruficate guarinteemng the quahty and
traceabihiev of the brewery’s spent malt and yeast for agncultural
feed We recycle 97% of the grain and hops used in the brewing
process All spent produce 15 used as amal feod

We audit em ironmental policies and procedures of Al major
suppliers to the brewery
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Our Herttage

We have been named in the Group Travel
Awards, Best Little Treasure of Britain.
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Corporate social responsibility continued

Employees
We are justifiably proud of our dedicated staff, manv of whom have

verv long vears of service and arc the fourth and fifth genertions

of local famihes working for us There 1s regular commumcation

on company strategy an evelopimen {u ol ACK aNnd wieas are
pany strategy and developments feedback and 1d

encouraged

We run 1 active Sports 1nd Soenl Club We orgrnise annunl
CU]]]pJIl} Crlcl\l.t ﬁ\r(.-xl-sldl fUUthu d.[]d. bU\VlS I“«l[c]l(‘s Ellld d
go-harting competiion W host a children s Christmas party, a
family summer cuting shopping trips and visits to sporting

events

We cncourige all staff to develop thar personid and business
skills and to be aware of their responsibilities to the customer
and to the law

We aclieved a Grade 1 Outstanding 1ating for tramng
provision i the 2010 annual monitoring visit by the BIT

Our staff support 1 vanety of charities mcludmg Wear 1t Pink
Roace for Life and Jens for Genes nd have parncipited ooy
fundrarsing events mcluding the London to Brighton Cvele
Rade, vinous marathons and peak chllenges

We have 1 well attended Pensioners Club that micets once + week
to play dominoes and cribbage The pensioners have a summer
outing Christmas hunch and other acuvities throughout the year
ineluding film shows and a dhy at Kent County Cricket Club

Community
Shepherd Neame has supported the community at serves for
many years

We take gre at prade in supporung the town of Fwersh i ind
the county of Kent through events such as the Faversham Hop
Fesuval Clssic Car and Motorcy cle Show and local Food and
Drink weekends We sponsor the Taversham Christmas Lights
the town s Food Trails Walking Project the Kent Messenger
Groups counnvwide Big (Quiz and the Rare Breed Centres
Great Kent Bike Rade which atraces up to 1 000 entrants

We invest around £500 000 mnually on sports sponsorship
usually hinked to the supply of drinks from grassroots to county
level The Company sponsors local leagues and provides
equipment for community sides We support 1 variety of sports
including cricket rugby football and traditional pub games such
as bat and trap We promote local tourism through our
membcrship of Visit Kent

We launched Sptfire Premium Kenosh Ale m 990 o ruse
money to help RAF veterins To date, fundrusing efforts for
RAT voterans chantios have neeeed more than 130 000

We have continued our support of the armed services by
sponsormg the publication of 1 e-book of pub walks
launched i aid of the charity Combat Stress

We put aside o acre of bad  Queen Court Nyrm m 2008 to
house part of the National Hop Collccuon of historic varieties

of haps

We mvite local farmers hop growers food suppliers people
from other associated industries and cwvic guests to our annual
Hop Blessing 11 a local church

Qur pubs are the contres of the conununiues thev serve and
they rase considerable suns for charites We activelv encourage
and support the charutable events they organise with donations
and advice We provide numerous prizes and auction lots for
charitable events to hilp rase money for a wide vaniety of
causes ranging from local schools to mational charities

We beheve thit we own more listed bualdings 1n Kent than

any other organisanon Our investment in their upheep

helps preserve nme-honoured crafts, including thatching,
stonemasonry tradinionat carpontrv and glass-ctching

We have recentlv discovered n historie druntge pipe carved
from a series of hollowed-out clm true trunks which will now
lead 1o a preservauon project wath archaeologists at the Museum
of London
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Board of Dircctors

MH Templem;m 63)

CHAIRMAN

CHAIRMAN OF THE NOMENATIONS
COMMITTEE

Appointed to the Board in March 2002 and
became Chairman in October 2005 He was
formerly Group Marketing Director of
Whitbread and Managing Director of the
Whitbread Beer Company where he was
responsible for developing Stella Artois into
the leading premium lager i the UK In 2001
he took up a varety of directarships and
consultancy roles He 1s currently Director
General of the fnstitute of Directors but
steps down in September 2011 He s a
Non-Executive Director of Melrose ple

R.L Nicol s4

NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

PENSION TRUSTEE

Appointed to the Board in November
2003 He s a retired Scottish qualified
solicitor and previously served in the Scots
Guards He has other business interests in
agriculture forestry insurance and lewsure
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J B Neame @9

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

PENSION TRUSTEE

Joined the Company in 1927 Was Company
Sacretary until July 1994 and Tied Trade
Director until 1998 when he was appomted
Managing Director he was apponted Chief
Executive in 2003 He 1s a Barnster-at-law
and was a Management Consultant with
the COBA Group from 1987 to 1991 Hes
a Non-Executive Director of the St Austell
Brewery Company Ltd and in 2011 was
appointed a Trustee of the Leeds Castle
Foundation He 1s a Director of the Bntish
Beer and Pub Asscciation and Chairman of
its Future Seer Group

O W A Barnes o)
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

Appointed to the Board in October 2005
He 15 a consultant to the City law firm
Travers Smith where he was previously a
partner for over 25 years Untl August 2011
he was a member of the Law 5ociety s
Company Law Committee on which he had
served for over 12 years

J H Leigh-Pemiberton 54
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

CHAIRMAN OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
Appointed to the Board in Septernber 2004
He 1s Chief Executrve of Credit Suisse UK
He 15 alse 3 Non-Executive Director of RIT
Capital Partners plc

K R Litdcfair 69

FINANCE aND 1T DIRECTOR

Jamed the Company and was appointed
to the Board as Finance Director in April
200G He took on responsibility for IT in
Z003 He isachartered accountant who
gained expenience with Ernst & Young
before joining London international Group
plc, where he was Finance Director of the
European Diision and then the
Operations Division




G H A Barnes 57

PROPERTY AND TENANTED

TRADE DIRECTOR

Joned the Company in 1978 He 15 2
chartered surveyor and was apponted

to the Board in January 2001 He 15 also
South East Regional Chair of the Institute
of Licensing

T W Falcon @2

PRODUCTION AND

DISTRIBUTION DIRECTOR

Appointed to the Board in fuly 2008

he worked for Maersk Company Ltd,

part of the A P Moller-Maersk group the
world leader in shipping, where he was
Dhrector of Strategy and Process Excellence
Prior Lo Maersk he spent three years with
AT Kearney management consultants
He 15 a member of the British Beer and
Pub Association § Future Beer Group and
a member of the Supervisory Committee
of Carnpden BRI

N J Bunting ¢4

RETAIL CIRECTOR

Jomned the Company in 1993 He has held
vanous management positions including
responsibility for the Free OnTrade and
Nattonal Sales He was operations manager
for Tenanted pubs from 2001 t0 2003 as
well as retail pubs operations manager
from 2003 He was appointed to the Board
n August 2005 He 1s a Non-Executive
Director of Davy & Co Ltd Chairman of
the Independent Farmily Brewers of Britain
Cperations Group and a Director of

Visit Kent

PRESIDENT

R H B Neame CBEDCL DL g7
PRESIDENT

CHAIRMAN OF THE PENSION TRUSTEES
Jesned the Company in 1956 and was
appointed to the Board in 1957 Was
appointad Executive Chairman in 1971 and
served i this role until October 2005 He
retired from the Board in June 2006 He s
the Company s first President and 13
Chairman of the trustees of the Shepherd
Neamne Company Retirement Account. In juty
2008 he recerved an Honorary Doctorate in
Crvil Law at the Unversity of Kent and on
16 December 2010 he was appointed an
Honorary Alderman by Kent County Counol
in recogrution of his service to the County
Counail and the people of Kent.

G R Crag ¢

SALES AND MARKETING DIRECTOR

Joined the Company in May 2006 and was
appointed to the Board in July 2006 He was
previously at PepsiCo for 12 years latterly
as Convenrence Director responsible for
Walkers Quaker and Tropicana products

COMPANY SECRETARY

FJ Lester 63

COMPANY SECRETARY

Joined the Company as Company Secretary
in September 2004 She qualfied as a
Chartered Secretary in South Afnca where
she worked 1n the manufactunng sector
On return to the UK in 1986 she initially
waorked tn the same sector and then in the
leisure industry as Company Secretary for
the Tussauds Group
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Corporate governance

The Board has put in place a frantework for corporte governance
which 1t beheves 1s appropriate to the Company

The Company 15 a private company nd 1s *A’ shares are quoted
on PLUS market which enjoys certain personal tax advantages

for our shareholders compared to a full stock market hsting

The Companys ‘I3 shares are owned by direct descendants of
Percy l3enle Neame and their spouses These shares can only be
transferred to direct relatives of the holder or other ‘B sharcholders
The ‘B shares wcount for 86% of the voting rights of the company,
which 1s a “close company ' for taxatton purposes

As 1 PIUS market company, Shepherd Neame 1s not requured to
comply with all aspects of The Combined Code on Corporate
Govermince However the Board 15 committed to mamtaiming the
highest standards within the Company

The Board

The Board currently comprises the Non-Lxecutive Chairman, the

Chief Executive, three Non-Laecutive and five Executive Directors
The biographical details on pages 18 and 19 show the broad range

of experience and skalls the Directors bring to the Board

Ome third of the Directors are subject to re-clection by rotation
at the Annual General Meetng each year All newly appointed
Directors stand for elecuon at the Annual General Meeting
following their appointment

The Board meets regularly throughout the year Its responubilities
include approving the Company’s strategy and annual budget,
authorising major mvestments acquisitions and capital expenditure,
and montoring the performance of the business

Committees of the Board

Executive

The Executive Commntter. of the Board comprises the Exccutive
Ihrectors and 1s chaired by the Chief Executive [t meets monthly
to revicw operating purformance and has delegated authoney from
the Board to deal with operational martters

Nomination

The Nominations Commuttee 15 chaired bv Miles Terpleman
and comprises the Non-Exccunve Dhrectors The comnmittee 15
responsible for identifving and proposing prospective candidates
for Directors for conmideration and appoinunent by the Board
as a whole

Shepherd Neame annual report and accounts 2011

Audit

The Audit Commttee 1s chared by James Leigh -Pemberton and
comprises the Non-Execuuve 1Directors The Chaef Executive,
Finance Director and external auditors attend 108 meennys by
mvitation 1 he Commuttee has defined terms of 1eference reviews
the audit appomement pertodically, discusses the audie plan with
the anditors and recommends approval of the financial statements
to the Board

Remuneration

[he Remunenition Comnmuttee 1s chared by Oliver Barnes ind
comprises the Non-Execume Eirectors It meets regularly and
deternunes on behalf of the Board the remuneration package of
the Executive Directors The rernuncranon of’ the Non-Executive
Directors 1s decided by the Board 1s a whole The Remuneration
Commuttee 15 also responsible for approving the bonus targets and
payments for the Companys Directors and Sentor Managers

In connng to these decmons the Remunention Committee
constders the averall performance of the Comypany and of the
mdividual Ditectors and Semtor Managers and che performance
of our national and regional compeutors External consultants are
used periodically to help with these deasions and Deloitte LLY
provided further advice m the currentvear following their review
last year

The Company aims to ensure that remuneration packages for
Execuuve Directors are competitive and comparable with
companies of a symlar size complext and activaty and are
designed to attrace, retamn and motivate Executive Directors with
approprrite skills and cypsbiheies Remunerwtion comprises fixed
remuncrition (saliry and other benefits) ind performance-reled
remuncration (primary and secondary share options in accordance
with the rules of the 2003 scheme and cash bonuses) designed o
motwvate to obtamn maximum performance 13 etaiks of remunerinon
and share oprrons are i the notes ta the fin el scatements

Internal control

The Board acknowledges its ulumate responsibility for the system
of innternal control within the Company and for us effectivencss
The system 15 designed to manage rather than elminate che risk

of failure to achieve business objectives and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance sgamst mmaterial nusstatement
or loss




The Board has carried out an assessinent of the key operational
and financal risks for the Compam, the conarol exercised at Board
level the controls rehed upon by the Board and the exceptions
for consideratron by the Board This review 15 updated on a
regular basis and since the year end the Board has comnussoned

a review of “Access and Authorisations  granted to users of our
SAP systems

The responsibility for the implementation and day-to-day operation
of the svstems of mternal control within the busimess 1s delegated

to the Chief Executive and Execanve 1srectors and through them
to members of management 1nd staff’ Key features of the system

of mternal ¢control mclude a detailed review of performance

against detmled budgets and forecasts which are <ubject to <crunny
and approval reports to the Board from each operating wrea a
requirement for authorisation of capital expendrture following
formal imvestment appraisals and a close mvolvement of the
Execunie Directors n the operation of the bustness

The Company does not have an internil audit functon wnd the
Board does not consider that one 1s requuired for a bustness of our
size Ongomg quality visits and counts by independent stocktakers
provide assurance over activitics 1 the managed pub estate Within
the brewery the quahty control procedures ISO 9001 certification
and mterny reviews by minagument provide suntlar assurance

Investor relations

The Board believes m an open and regular dinlogue wath 1ts
shareholders [nformnation 1s provided to shareholders in the interum
mid anmual financ) stitements The Churmin Chief Laccutive
and Finance Director make an annual presentation of the

Company s results to City investors and analysts This presentation
1s simultancously posted on the Company's website The Board
offers to hold individual briefings with 1ts myor sharcholders

twice 1 yeir if required All shareholders 1re encouraged to attend
the Annual General Meeung

During the year we have appointed Charles Stanley who have a
large private chent portfolin, to act as co-broker alongside Cazenove
i order to improve hquditv 1 the market for our A’ shares

All formal Company announcements are posted on PLUS market
{(www plusmarketsgroup com)

Employees and pensioners

The health and wellbeing of our emplovees 1s paramount

We strive to improve therr safery at work by undertaking regular
risk assessments and traiming We beheve i open and transparent
commumecanon with our employees and hold regular bricfings
on relevant matters such as the performance of the business,
forthconung events miuatives and virgets

We encourage employees to parbcipate 1 activities beyond therr
daily jobs and to contribute to the Company’s community
mvolvement We are supportive of thetr partcapanon m local
government as jusiices of the peace and i other voluntary services
and we support vartous sporting 1nd soctil actvittes for employees
We place an emphasis on longevity of service and loyalty and
reward 1t

We believe strongly i supporting our former employees

In addiion to funding a pension the Companv mamtams an
active social programme for pensioners, which enables them
to mamtan contact with former colleagues
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Results Turnover for the year ended 25 June 2011 increased by 5 2%
to £,121 3m 2010 £115 4m) and operating profit before
exceptional items mercased by 3 3 vo £12 3m (2010 £11 9m)
This growth was achieved mainhy as a result of mcreased beer sales to
free trade customers and a strong retm] performance, particularly m
foed and iccomodation despite 4 difficult rading emvaromnent for
the industry Margin on operating profic before excepuonal items
was 10 1% (2010} 10 3%)

The results and business opartions e discussed 1n more detail in
the Chairman's statement and Chief Execuuve s review

Exceptional items Operaung exceptional charges comprised an
impurment charge of £1 9m on 13 licensed prenises (2010 £0 5m
on five heensed premises) The exceptional profit amowunted to

AL 4m from the sale of eight pubs compared with £1 9m n 2010
from the sale of 15 small pubs several preces of land and certain
unlicensed premises

There was no tax atmibutable 1o exceprional items (2010 £0 1 m)
15 1 result of eollover rehief on property profits ind the disallowance
of the impairment charge

Finance charges Net mntcrest charges decreased by 6 8% to £4 3m
(2010 L4 6m) as average borrowmngs reduced during the year

Interest cover before exceptional atems improved to 2 9 tmes
(2010 2 6 tumes)

Taxation The v charge after exceptional stems was £2 1m,1n
effective mice of 32 2% (2010 £2 4m and 27 19) The charge was
reduced bv the tax on the rolled over gams of L0 Im (20:10
£04m) the effect of the reductuon in the wananon rate of L0 4m
(2010 ml} and the release of a prior vear overprovision of £0 1m
(2010 mil) However the charge his been incrensed by £0 5m
(2010 £0 1m) m respect of the impairment provision which has
been disallowed for tax purposes

Earmings per share Basic eartings per £1 ‘A ordmary share before
exceptional items increased by 17 0% to 46 2p However basic
earmngs per £1 A ordmary share decreased by 31 1% to 34 4p
s 4 result of the unpurment charge nd lower property profits

Dividends Thvidends per share paid and proposcd n respect of
the year increased by 3 0% to 23 8p per ‘A ordinary share (2010
23 1p) and 0 476p per B ordmary share (2010 0 462p) to give a
total of £3 043,000 (2010 £2 953 000) Dividend cover has
decreased to 1 4 umes (2010 2 2 nmes) due to the impact of
excepuional items However dividend cover pre exceptional items
ncreased to 19 nmes (2010 1 7 times)

Cash flow Earnings before interest, tax depreciation and amortisation
(EBIT1JA) and before free trade loan discounts increased bv 3 1% to
£189m (2010 £18 4m}) both before and after excepuonal charges

There was 1 net cash outflow from short-term working ¢apreal
movements of £,0 6m, mainly in respect of mcreased debtors
compared with a £1 6m mAow m 2010

As a result of these two factors the net exh inflow from operung
activities decreased by 9 2% o £18 5m (2010 £20 3m)
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The net ¢ sh outlow on capimil expenditure and financnl unestnent
was £7 4m 2010 L2 1m), comprising a £9 8m outflon on
mvestment 1 tangible fixed 1ssets less an mflow of £2 Sm principally
from the sale of small pubs The net cash outffow ncludes £3 4mon
the purchase of two pubs and three unhcensed propertes In 2010,
the Companv made no acquisinons and disposed of 15 pubs and
stven unhcensed properties

The total cash cost of interest tax and dvidends increased by £0 4m
to £9 2m mamly due to a £0 4m mncreast m corporation tax
paviments as a resuit of higher profit before tas and exceptional wems

There was a net cash mflow before fimaneing of £1 8Bm (2010

£94m)

Fixed assets Additions to tingable fiaed wsets 1mounted to £9 9m
and the net book value of disposals was £2 3m Fully depreciated
assets that cost £2 9m were also written off 1Depreciation of
angible fixed 1ssets was £6 2m (2010 £6 1)

The valuaon exercise tmdertaken dunng the year gave a surplus ever
book value of £68m which has not been booked n the ccounts An
imparrment review was carried out at the sane tune and we have
recognised a £1 9m excepuonal charge in respect of 13 properties

Overill there was 4 L0 4m decre we in ungible fived issets
@U10 £4 0m)

Financing and loan faciliies Throughout the vear the company loan
facihiies comprised a L£60m 20 vear term loan maturing m 2026 a
L15m fve year term lom md 1 £ 10m revolving credit fioihiy
matuning m 2014 together wath a £ 5m comnutted overdraft facihty
which 1s rencwable 1 June 2002 Durning the vear the Company

repaid and cancelled £5m of the £ 15m term loan At the vear end
there were no drawings on the overdraft or revolver aind a cash balance
of £4 6 to give net borrowings of £64 9m after deduchng £0 5m
of unamortised loan issue costs Gearing at the year end was 34% (2010
56%) Gearing adjusted for the unbooked revaluanion surplus was 33%

Interest on the 20 year term loan was fixed by swap contricts when
1t was drawn down to give an effective rate of meerest of 53 94%
Interest on the £15m loan and the revolving credit facility 1s based
on LIBOR plus 1 nitargin of berween 2 75% ind 5% Ths hws not
been fixed by swap contract

The rauo of debt to EBITDA before exceptional ttems at the year
end was 3 4 times (2010 3 6 tunes)

Treasury policy and financial sk management The policy for
mnagmg treasury and fnancial rask 1s as set out i note 26

The rectors have reviewed the company s future funding
requirements and current facithties and concluded that the facilies
should be reduced As a result during the year the Company has
made a voluntary prepavment of /£,5m of its five year term loan
thereby reducing this facihty to £ 10m

Accounting standards The Company has not adopted any new
hinanend Reporting Sundirds duning the vear




Report of the Directors

The irectors have pleasure i presenting their mnety-sevench
Annual Report and Accounts for the 52 wecks ended 25 June 2011

Activities and review of business

The principal acuvities of the Company are the brewing and
pachaging of beer, the wholesahing and retailing of beer, cider,
wines, sparits and mnerals, property ownership and pubhic house
and hotel management This report should be read n conjuncnon
with the Chairman s Statement Chief Executives Review and
Finaneinl Review which provide further detuls of the Company s
activities for the 52 weeks ended 25 june 201 1 mncluding comments
on sales sales volumcs and contribution

Risks and uncertainties

The principal nisks and uncertamties 1n the business {other than the
kev financial risks which are set out 1n note 26¢) are noted below
and are discussed further 1n the Chairman’s Statement and the
Clucf Exceutive’s Roview

* Economic and market conditions
The success of the Company s operattons s partlv rehant upon
the strength of the UK economy and, although we would
expect to outperform the market performince could be
adverselv affected by reduced consumer spending as a resuit
of a weahenming in the econemy, rising unemplovment or
mcreases mn personal tasanon

» Regulation and taxation of the sales of alcohol
The drinks mdustry 1s heavilv regulated and heavily taved
through excise duty The government mereased excse duty
n 20114 and has stated that it intends to nicrease duty by two
ptreentage pomnts above the rite of inflinon to 2015 There 1»
a risk that this, or other changes 1n taxation or regulanion to
address health 1ssues or binge drinking could affect the market
our siles and salcs margins

= The beer tre
The operation of the beer tie by Pubcos 1s currently under
review by the Business, Innovation and Skills Commattee which
met agan in July 2011 to conader progress made agamnst the
findings of the previous commuttee We awnt the outcome
of their findurgs but any substintive change to our abihity to
operate traditional ted tenancies could be detrimental to
our busmess

*  Brand and reputation
The Compamy has a range of strong brands and an ¢xcellent
reputation mn the market There 15 a risk that uneapected events
or incidents could damage our brands or our reputation This
risk 1s mngated by staff traiming adherence o high quahty
standards throughout the business management review and
internal control

« Raw matenal and other input costs
In recent years the Compuny has suffered from sigmficant
mncreases m the cost of mputs such as utilities, malt and food for
resale There 15 2 risk chat mput costs coutd increse sigmficandy

again 1n the future

* Information technology
1 he Company places significant rehince on informaton
systems A significine or prolonged fatlure of these systems
would affect all aspects of our business To munimise the risk the
IT funcuon has in place back-up svstems a disaster recovery
plan and external support agreements for hardwarc and sofiware
and these will ensure that in the event of amy problem normal
trading would be restored quickly

*  Site dependency
The Company's operations are managed from s sole brewery
site 1n Faversham A disaster at this site would senously disrupt
operations However, we have developed a disaster recovery
plan to mitgate the impact, mcluding wrrangements to use
alternatve facihues

Dwidends

The Company paid an mtenm dividend of 4 80% (2010 4 75%)
on the A'and B3’ ordinary shares and the Directors now
reconunend a final dividend of 19 0U% (2010 18 35%) on both
classes of shares This makes 1 total of dividend for the year of
23 80% {2010 23 10%)

The total proposed final dividend on ordinary shares will be
L2431 000 (2010 £2 345,000) which together wath the 2011
mterim dividend pud of £614 000 (2010 £608 000) will make
total dividends of £3 045,000 (2010 £2,957 000)

Directors

The names of the Directors at 25 June 201 1 are set out on pages
18 and 19 Paruculars of the Dircctors’ mterests i che Company’s
shares are set out in note 24 1o the accounts

Mr OW A Barnes Mr N ] Bunting and MrT W Falcon reure from
the Board by rotation and will be offering themselves for re-election

Fixed assets

The freehold heensed properues of the Company were valued
individunlly at open market value on an existing use basis as at
28 June 1997 by the Compuy < own profussionally quahfied staff
These figures were incorporited ito the iccounts as 1wt 28 June
1997 and subsequent addinions have been included at cost

During the year ended 25 June 2011 the Company carrred our a
valuation of these assets on the same basis This showed a surplus of
A£68 milhon over the book value which has not been recorded in
the accounts

Lhe brewery premises and other fixed assets remun w the accounts
at historical cost The Directors have considered the value of all
fixed assets of the Company and believe that ther aggregate value
15 significantly more than the amount 1n the balnce sheet

Purchase of own shares

During the year no shares were purchased [n 2010 40 284 £1°A
ordinary shares representing ) 35% of that chiss of share, were
purchased at a cost of £343,824 The shares were acquired 1n
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Reeport of the Directors continued

connection with the Company s obhigations under the 2005
Reestriceed Share Scheme 1he maxamum number of shares held in
the year was 194,281 represenung 1 70% of the £1'A erdmary
shares i 1ssue at a cost of £2 247,000 (2010 203 979 shares being

1 78% of the £ 1 ‘A’ ordinary shares in 1ssue at a cost of £2 233,000)

Directors’ responsibilities for the financial statements

Company law requires the Dircctors to prepare financal statuments
for each fimncial vear Under that law the Directars have elected o
prepare the finmenl stwements in 1ccordince with United
Kmgdom Generallv Accepted Accounung Practice (United
Kingdom Accountng Standards and apphicable law) Under
compny hw the Dire ctors must not ipprove the financnl
statements unless they are satisfied that they give 2 true and fair
view of the stite of 2ffurs of the Company 1nd of the profit or loss
of the Company for that puniod In prop g those funnecial
statements the Directors are required to

+ select suitable wecounting policies and then apph
them consistently,

*  make judgements md esumates that are resomible
and prudent,

* state whether applicable accounting standatds have been
followed nd

+ prepare the finwnc statements on the going concern basis
unless 12 15 mappropriate to presume that the company will
continue 1n business

The Iirectors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records which disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time the
finwncial positon of the Comipany and to enable them to ensure
that the fininenl statements comply with the Compames Act 2006
They are 1kso responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and hence for tahimg reasonable steps for the prevention
and detecuon of fraud and other rrregularines

The mamtenance and integrity of the mformation on the
Shepherd Neanme website 1s the responsibility of the Directors

I cgislation m the Umited Kingdom goverming the preparanon and
disscounition of finarrcal stituments may differ from legislaton
other jurisdictions

Gaing concern

[ he Directors have reviewed the financinl projections together
with the Company s bank facihties, as discussed in the Cash Flow
and Fmaneing secuons of the Finanaial Review on page 22 and n
accordance with the capital and risk management process set out m
note 26, and on the basis of reasonable expectation have concluded
that the Company hs adequate finanaal resources to continue 1n
aperation as a gomg concern for the foreseeable future and
accordingly consider that 1t 15 appropriate to prepare the accounts
on a gomng concern basis
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Drrectors statement as to disclosure of information to the auditors
The Directors who were members of the Board at the time of
approving the Directors Report are histed on pages 18 and 19
Having made enquinies of fellow Directors ewch of these Directors
confirms that

* 1o the best of each Directors knowledge and belief, there 1< no
information relevant to the preparanon of this report of which
the Company’s auditor 1s unaware and

= ciwch Duectn has taken all the steps a Director might reasomibly
be evpected to have taken to be aware of any relevant audu
nformation and to establish that the Company’s auditor 15 aware
of that mformation

this confirmation 1s given and should be mter preted i accordance
with the provisions of secuon 418 of the Companies Act 2006

Use of financial instruments

A statenuent 1 rlanon to the use of finaneial instruments by di
Compny 1s given m the Finncia]l Review and also 1 note 26 1o
the accounts on pages 43-45

Employees

It 35 the Company s policy to gve full consideration to suitable
apphcanons for employment by disabled persons Opportunities
also exist for employees who become disabled to continue
their emploviment or to be trained for other positions i the
Company s emplovment

The Company provides emplovees with 2 summiry of 1ts finanerd
position and 15 continuallh aiming to provade them wiath
informauen on matters of concern to them as employees

Employees continue to participate directly in the success of the
business through the Share Incentive Plan

Third party indemnity provisions

Lhe entnpany has m place a Directors and Officers Liabiliny
Insurance Policy which indemmifies the Directors ind Qfficers
from any claim or claims on them o the course of their business
actavitres to the extent that they do not relate to acts of fraud or
dishonesty The total cover under the policy 15 £3 nmlhon

Charitable donations

In the vear the Company donared £37 000 (2010 £18 000} for
chanitable purposes, principally to local charities in the
commumnities m which the company operates

Auditors
A rusalution to reappoint Delottte LLP a3 the Company s auditor
will be put to the forthcoming Annual Geperal Meeung

By order of the Board
FJ Lester
Company Secretarv
17 Court Street
Faversham Kenr

22 September 2011




Independent auditor’s report to the members of Shepherd Neame Limited

We have audited the financiul stitements of Shepherd Neame for
the year ended 25 June 2011 which comprise the Profit and Loss
Account the Statement of lotal Recognised Gains aind Losses che
Notc of T listorical Cost Profit and Losses the Balance Shect the
Cash Flow Statement, the Notes to the Cash Flow Statement the
Accounting Pohaes and the relited notes 1 to 27 The financial
reporung framework that has been apphed in therr preparation 1s
appheable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (Umted
Kingdom Generlly Accepted Accounting Practice)

This report 15 made solelv to the company s members as 2 body

in accordance with Chapter 3 Part 16 of the Companres Act 2006
Qur wdic work has been underraken so that we nught state to the
Company's members those matters we are required to state to them
11 an auditors’ report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by law we do not accepe or assume responsibility to
anyone ather than the Company and the Company's members as

1 boady for our audit work for this report or for the opinons we
have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As expluned more fullv in the Directors Responsibilities Statement
the directors ire responsible for the prepinitton of the frnmenl
statements and for being sausfied that they give a wue and fair view
Qur responsibility 15 to aud:t and express an opmion on the
finanaal statements 1n accordanece wath applicable Iw
Internanonal Standards on Audiang (UK and Ireland} Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board s
Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit imolves obrammng ¢ vidence about the amounts ind
disclosurcs m the financial stataments sufficient to give reasonablc
wsuruice that the financal statements are free from macerial
nusstatement whether caused by fraud or crror This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting polivies are appropriate to
the Company s uircunistances and have been consistently apphed
and dequateh disclosed the reasonablencss of sigmficant
accounting estimites made by the directors, and the overall
prosentimion of the fimwnenl stwements In addison we read all
the finaneial and non-financnl information mn the anmnal report to
identfy mitenal inconsistencies with the audited finnenl
statements [ we become aware of anv apparent material
misstatements or incensistencics we consider the impheations

for our report

Optnion on financiat statements
In our opimon the financial sttements

« gwve a true and fan view of the stite of the Cotpany s affairs
15 1t 25 June 2011 wnd of s profit for the sear then ended,

» have been properly prepared in accordance with Umited
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounung Pracuce, and

* have been prepared i accordance wath the requairements of the
Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Compantes Act 2006

In our opimon the information given m the Directors Report for
the finmeial year for which the financial statements are prepared 15
consistent with the financinl statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report 1n respect of the following

Under the Companics Act 2006 we are required to report to you

if m our opimon

= adequate accountmg records have 1ot been kept or returns
adequate for our audit have not beun receved from branches
not visite.d by us or

= the financual statemants are not 1 agreement with the
accountng records and returns or

» certamn disclosures of directors’ remuneiation specificd by lhw
are not made or

* we have not receve d all the informauon and cxpl inations we
require for our andat

(kM
T Steel (Scnior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutorv Auditor

Tonden United Kingdom
22 September 2011

wwwihephendneame co uk
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Profit and loss account year ended 25 june 2011

2011 2010
Befare 2011 20M Befare 2010 2010
exceptional itemns  Exceptioral stems Total  exceptional terms  Exceptional iterns Total
note £ 000 £000 £000 £000 £ 000 £000
Turngver 1 121 346 - 121 346 115 356 - 115 356
Operating charges 2.3 {109 094) (1,915) {111 009) {103 499} (450) {103 949}
Operating profit 12252 (1915) 16 337 11857 (450) 11407
Prafit on sale of property 3 - 419 419 - 1887 1,887
Profit on ordinary activities before interest 12 252 (1 496) 10 756 11857 1,437 13294
Interest recevable and similar income 32 - 32 23 - 23
Interest payable and similar charges 4 (4,303) - (4,303) (4,604) - (4 604)
profit on ordinary activities before taxation 7981 {1 4986) 6 485 7276 1437 8713
Taxation 5 (2,090) - {2 030) (2 243) (117 (2 360)
Profit for the year after taxation 589 (1 496) 4,355 5,033 1320 6353
Earrungs per £1 normimal share value
Basic 7 34 4p 49 9p
Basic before exceptional stems 7 46 2p 395p
Diluted 7 342p 49 6p
Movermnents In reserves are set out in notes 22 and 23
Statement of total recogmsed gains and losses
There are no recognised gains or lasses other than the profit attibutable to the shareholders of the Company of £4 395000 for the year ended 25 June 2011
(year ended 26 june 210 £6 353 000)
Note of historical cost profits and losses
201 2010
£000 £000
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 6485 8713
Realisation of property valuation 444 316
Drfference between an historic cost depreciation charge and the actual depreciation charge for the year 33 36
Historical cost arofit on ordinary actrvities before taxation 6962 9,065
Histornical cost profit for the year retained after taxation 4872 6705
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Balance sheet asat 25 june 2013

201 2010
note £ 000 £ 000
Fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets ¢ 18 55
Tangible fixed assets " 184,053 184532
Investments and loans 12 1,642 1857
185,753 186,444
Current assets
Stock 13 4,843 4847
Debiors 14 18,343 17,030
Cash 4 588 7781
27774 25658
Creditors amounts falling due within one year
Bank loans and averdrafts 16 - (937)
Creditors 15 {198561) (18892)
{19 861) (19829)
Net current assets 7913 9828
Total assets less current babilities 193,666 196,273
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year
Bank loans 16 (69,506) {73,394)
Provistan for Liabtlities — deferred tax 20 (4.616) (4919)
Met assets 119,544 117960
Capital and reserves
Calied up share capital 21 12,818 12818
Share premium account 22 1,439 1439
Revaluation reserve 22 14,046 14,490
Reserve for own shares held 22 {855) {1254)
Profit and loss account 22 92,096 90,467
Equity shareholders' funds 23 119,544 117,960
These accounts were approved by the Board of Directors on 22 September 2011 and were signed on its behalf by
M H Templeman
)8 Neame
Directars
www shepherdneame co uk
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Cash flow staternent year ended 25 June 2011

201 201 2010 2010
E£000 £000 £000 £000
Net cash inflow frem operating activities 18 470 20 346
Returns on investment and serncing of finance
Interest paid {4,246) (4,278}
Interest receved 256 23
(4 220) {4 255)
Taxation pard (2 052) {1701)
Capital expenditure and financial investment
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (2.811) (7 968)
Proceeds of sales of tangible fixed assets 2,510 5854
Additional loans to customers (323) {213)
Customer loan redemptions 191 247
(7 433) (2 080)
Equity dividends paid (2 958) {2 500)
Net cash inflow before financing 1807 9410
Financing
Purchase of own shares - (344)
Repayment of short-term loan - {1500)
Repayment of long-term loan (5.000} -
Mavernent in cash duning the year (3.193) 7,566
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Notes to the cash flow statement year ended 25 june 2011

1 Reconcliation of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating actmnties

o1 2010
before 2011 2011 before 2010
exceptional items  exceptional stems Total  exceptional tems  exceptional cteems. 2010
£000 £000 £ 000 £ D00 £ 000 £ 000
Operating profit 12,252 (1.915) 10,337 1t 857 (450) 11 407
Depreciation and amortisation 6,209 - 6209 6172 - 6172
Impairment provision - 1915 1915 - 450 450
Charge for share based payments credited to reserves 147 - 147 346 - 345
Decrease/(increase) in stocks 4 - 4 (88) - (88)
Increase in debtors and prepayments 1,272) - (1272) (407) - {407)
Increase in creditors and accruals 647 - 647 2122 - 2122
Free trade [oan discounts 284 - 284 219 - 219
Less on sale of assets {excluding property) 199 - 199 125 - 125
6,218 1915 8133 8489 450 8,939
Net cash inflow from operating activities 18 470 - 18,470 20 346 - 20,346
2 Reconciliation of cash flows to movement In net debt
2011 2010
£000 £ 000
Opening cash and overdraft 1M 215
Closing cash and overdraft 4588 7781
(Decrease)/increase i cash dunng the year {3193) 7566
Repayment of short-term loan - 1500
Repayment of long-term loan 5000 -
Amortisation of loan 1ssue costs {175} (275)
Movement in net debt during the year 1,632 8791
Net debt at beginning of year (66,550) 75 341)
Net debt at end of year (64,918) (66 550)
3 Analysis of changes in net debt
Repayment of Amartisation of
200 Cash flow long teem loan 1S5Ue €OSTS 2011
£000 £ 000 £ D00 £000 £ 000
Cash 7781 (3193} - - 4,588
Debt due within ane year (937) - 937 - -
6,844 (3183) 937 - 4,588
Debt due after more than one year (73394) - 4063 (175) {69 506)
Total {66 550) (3193) 5000 (7s) (64,918)
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Accounung policies

The principal accounting policies are summansed below and have been consistentlv apphied threughout the year and the preceding vear

a Basis of preparation

I he rwcounts are prepared on 1 gomng concern bisis 1 set out 1n the Report of the Mirectars (pyge 24) under the historical cost convention
modified by the revalution of frechold hicensed 1nd wsocnted preperues and are prepared 1n accordance with UK 1pplicable 1ecounting
standards (UK GAAP) As the Company s subudianes are dorm e consolidated financiil statainenes hwe not bun pre pared

b Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately fram a business are capitabised ax cost and are amorused on a straight line basis over their estunated useful
lives as follows

+  Lacences and Tride marks 10 to 20 veurs

The carrving value of mtangible assets is reviewed for impairment at the end of the first full vear followmy acqusiion and 10 other penods
if events or changes 1n circumstances indicate the carrying value mav not be recoverable

c Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Tangible fined assets are ncluded 1t cost less accumuliced depreciiuon encept in the cse of certam heensed freehold propertics which were
revilited before the adoption of FIRS 15 In weordmce with the trumition ] provistots set out i FRS 15 the Company his carried forward
the book value of these propernies adjusted for subsequent disposals

Assets under construction are not depreciated until they are brought mnto use All other tingible assets are deprecated at varying rates
calculated to write off their carrying value less cstimated residual value, evenly over their expected useful lives i follows

*+ Frechold brewers buildings 25 vears

+  Other treehold and long leasehold buildings 50 svears

= Shotr lewseholds over the lease term
+  Other plant equipment fixtures and vehicles 3 to 20 vears

¢+ Computer hardware and software 3to 10 vears

1he carrying value of tangible fined assets 1s reviewed for impurment if events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value
may not be recoverable

d  Fixed asset investments
Fined asset investments are stated 1t historic cost The carrving values of the fived wsset investments e reviewed for mpairment in periods
if events or changes in circumstances ndicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable

e Stocks
Stocks are valued on a consistent basis it the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost of own beers produced mcludes materials and
drrectlv attributable fixed and varnble production overheads

f  Accounting for leases
(1} As Lessor
Rentals recenable under operting lewses are included m turnover on an rccruals bases

(1) As Lessee
Rentals pavable under operung le ses are charged to income on a straight hine basis over the term of the lease allow ing for mflauon

g Taxation
(1} Current tax
Corporiion tax pryable 18 provided on the tavable profit « the current rate

{n) Deferred tax

Deferred tax 15 recogmsed 1 respect of 21l tnung differences that have originated but not reversed at the balance sheet date where
transactions or events have occurred at that date that will result 1in an obhgation to pay more or 2 right to pay less or to receive more tax
with the following exceptions
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« provision 15 not made for tax on gans irsing frem the revaluanon (ind similar far vahue adjustments) of fined wsets and guns on disposal
of fixed assets that have been rolled over nto replacement assets unless there 15 a binding agreement 1o dispose of the 1ssets concerned at
the balance sheet date Provision 15 not made if 1 1s probable that the taxable gam will be rolled over into replacement assets and charged
to 11x only where the replacement assets are sold,

» duferred tx wsews ard recogmsed only to the oxtent thar the Dircetors consider that it 15 morc likely than not that there will be sustable
tnable profits from which the future reversat of the underhing unung differences can be deducted

Deferred tax 1s measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods 1n which timing differences
reverse based on the tax rate and laws that have been enacted or substantnely enacted at the balance sheet date

h  Turnover

Turnover s recognised when the sigmificant risks and rewards of ewnership of the goods have passed to the buyer, usualhy on dispacch of
the goods, or on provision of service Turnover comprses the invoice value of goods mclusive of excise duty and services net of VAT and
dincounts Rennl income recerved from the tied estate propertics s recogiused i the pertod i whuch it rises

1 Pensions
the Company operates defined contribntion pension schemes Contributions are charged to the profit and loss account as they become
payable m accordance with the rules of the scheme

) Dwvidends
In accordce with FRS 21 dividends payable are shown as 1 movement m reserves when declared (interun dividend} or approved
{final dividend)

k Loans
The finmee cost including iy lon premium recogmsed m the profit md loss account m respect of loans 15 ¢ deulited 3t 1 constant rite on
the carrying amount so as to spread the net cost evenly over the perrod to repayment

1 Derivative instruments
The Company uses interest rate swaps to adjust mterest rate cxposures The Companvs criteria for interest rate swaps arc

+ the mstrument must be relted to i 1sset or 1 nbility and
+ 1t must chinge the chareter of the mterest rite by converning 1 varnible rate to 1 fived riee or vice versa

Gains nd losses 1rsing on these mstruments are recognised m the profit 1nd loss account ot the same urne as the charge insing from the
related asset or liability

m Share-based payment

All aptions are equity settled The cost of equiry-settled transactions with employees 15 measured by reference ta the fair value ac the dare
at which they are grnted and 15 recogmied as an expense over the vestmg period which ends on the date on which the relevant emplovees
become fully enutled to the award Fair vilue 15 determined using an appropriate pricing medel In valming equuty-scttled transactions no
account 15 tihen of iy vestng conditions other than conditons linked to the price of the shares of the Company (mirket conditions)

The amount recogmsed as an expuase 15 wusted to reflect the acmil mumber of share oprions that vest except where forfuture 1s only due
to market-based conditions not achteving the thresheld for vestung

At each bilance sheet date before vesting the cumulative eapense 1s calculated representing the extent to which the vestmg period has
espired and management’s best estimate of the achiesement or othurwise of non-market conditions The movement 1 cumulative expense
since the previous balance sheet 18 recogmsed in the profit and loss account, wath a correspondmg entry m cquity

www shipherdneante couk
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Notes to the accounts zs june 2011

1 Turmover

Turnover compnises sates net of discounts rents recaivable and services rendered from continuing trading activities excluding vatue added tax The Directors consider
that the business carned on by the Company 1s that of a fully mntegrated regional brewer aperating tn the UK and that this constitutes one class of bustness The

export sales during the year were £1836 000 (2010- £2 020 000)

2 Operating charges

201 2070
£000 £ 00t
Change in stocks of fimished goods and work 1n progress 225 (239)
Goods for resale 21,414 18905
Raw matenals duty and consumables 36471 34199
Staff costs
‘Wages and salaries 19239 18 664
Social security costs 1,783 1645
Other pension costs 913 888
Depreciation and amortisation 6209 6,172
Lass on sale of fixed assets (excluding properties) 199 125
Property repairs 1692 1,542
Operating lease rentals — land & buldings 2989 2,826
Other operating charges 17960 18,772
Before exceptional items 109 094 103,499
Exceptional itermn — impairment charge on properties 1915 450
Total operating charges 111009 103,949
The analysis of auditors remuneration 1s as follows
2011 2010
£ 000 £ 000
Total fees payable to Deloitte LLP for the audit of the Company s annual accounts 75 75
Other senvices pursuant to legislation
Tax services 34 54
Other services 8 8
Total non-audit fees 42 iz
Fees payable to the Company s auditor for the audit of associated pension scheme 6 7
Total fees payable to Delotte LLP 123 154
3 Exceptional items
2011 2010
£000 £000
Operating items
tmpairment charge m respect of 13 {2010 five) licensed properties to write them down to recoverable amount (see note 11) (1.915) (450}
{1,915) {450)
Non operating items
Profit on sale of property 415 1887
Total exceptional items before tax (1 496) 1,437
Taxation charge m respedt of the operatng items {see note S} - (317)
Total exceptional items after tax {1 496) 1,320
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4 Interest payable and similar charges
Interest payable in both the cumrent and prior year related solely to charges in respect of bank loans and overdrafts

5 Taxation
a Tax on profit on ordinary activities
2011 2010
£ 000 £ 000
Current tax
UK Corporation tax at 27 5% (2010 28%)}) 2635 2319
Prior year over provision (242) -
Total current tax 2,393 2,319
Deferred tax
Ornigination and reversal of taiming differences (115) 108
Effect of reduction in the rate of carporation tax (357) -
Prior year under/{ever) provision 155 (67)
Total deferred tax (303) 41
Total tax charge 2,090 2 360

b Factors affecting the current tax charge

The tax assessed on the profit on ordinary activities before taxation for the year 1s higher (2010 lower) than the standard average statutory rate of cerporation tax in
the UK of 27 5% {2010 28%)

The differences are reconciled below

2011 2010

£000 £000

Profit on ordinary activities befare tax 6485 8713
UK Corporation tax at average statutory rate 27 5% (2010 28%) 1783 2440
Expenses and charges not deductible for tax purposes and non-taxable income 840 386
Capital allowances less than/{in excess) of depreciation 130 (148)
Short-term timing differences (5) 45
Rolled over gains on asset disposals (113) (404)
Prior year aver provision (242} -
2393 2,319

The exceptional profit on the dispesal of properties of £419 000 (2010 £1887,000) does not give nse to 2 tax charge (2010 £117,000) after the effect of
rollover relief

¢ Factors that may affect future tax charges

No provision i1s made for the taxation habilty which would arise on the dispasal of properties at their revalued amounts or on gans rolled over intc replacement
assets Such tax would become payable only if the property were sold without it being pessible te clam rollover relief The total amount unprovided 1s estimated
at £6 6m (2010 £8 1m) based an a carporation tax rate of 26% (2010 28%]) At present it 1s not envisaged that any such tax will become payable in the
foreseeable future

The changes in the rates of corporation tax and the capital allowances regime substantively enacted since the year end and to be effected next year and thereafter
will impact future tax charges These include reductions in the statutory rate of corporation tax from 26% to 23% over three years and a reduction in the capitat
allowance rates from 20%/10% to 18%/8% on the main pool and spectal rate assets respectively beginning 1 April 2012 The impact of these charges has not
been calculated

wwwshepherdneame co vk
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Notes to the accounts 25 june 2011

5 Dividends
2011 2010
E 000 £ 000
Declared and paid duning the year
£1 A ordinary shares
Final drvidend far 2010 18 35p (2003 17 90p) 2094 2049
Intenm dwidend for 2011 4 80p (2010 4 75p) 549 543
2,643 2592
2p'B ordinary shares
Final dividend for 2010 0 367p {2009 © 358p) 250 243
Intepm dividend for 2011 C096p (2010 0 095p} 65 65
315 308
Dividends paid 2958 2,900
Proposed for approval at the 2011 AGM
Final dnadend for 2011 on £1°A’ ordinary shares 19 00p (2010 18 35p) 2173 2095
Final dividend for 2011 on 2p B ordinary shares 0 380p {2010 0 367p} 258 250
2,431 2345
Shares held by the Company (and not aliocated to employees under the Share Incentive Plan) are treated as cancelted when calculating dividennds and earmings
per share
7 Earntngs per share
2011 2010
Based on £1 norminal share value £ 000 £ 000
Profit attributable to equity sharehalders 4 395 6353
Weighted average share capital 12 764 12 737
Dilutive outstanding options 76 74
Adjusted weighted average share capital 12,840 128N
Basic 34 4p 49 9
Basic before exceptional iterns 46 2p 395
Dituted 34 2p 49 6p

The earrings per share before exceptional items are calculated on profit after tax and before exceptionaliterns of £5 891000 (2010 £5033,000}
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8 Directors' remuneration

2011 2010
£ 000 £ 00O
Aggregate amount
Dwectors emoluments 1256 1184
Pension contnbutions 189 182
1,445 1366
2011 2010
Number Number
The number of Directors whao
Had pensions benefit accruing under money purchase schernes 6 6
Excercised options over shares in the Company 1 4
Had awards recesvable in the form of shares under a long-term incentive plan 6 6
Detads of Directors share options are shown in note 24
201 2010
£ 600 £000
Highest paid Director
Emoluments 230 236
Pension contnbutions 42 42
272 278

Duriag the year the highest paid Director was granted secondary aption rights aver 6,789 A ordinary shares under the long-term incentive plan (2010 5 178 shares)

and exercised options over 750 A’ ordinary shares (2010 622 shares)

The aggregate gain not meluded above made by Directors on the exertise of share options was £6 000 (2010- £30,000)

9 Employees

The average number of persens with contracts of employment, including Directors during the year was as follows

2o 2010

Number of Number of

employees employees

Brewery 323 315
Retailing 775 802
1098 1137

10 Intangible fixed assets

Licences and

trade marks
£000
Cost
At 26 june 2010 and 25 june 2011 364
Amortisation
At 26 June 2010 309
Provided dunng the year 37
At 25 June 2011 346
Net book value at 25 June 2071 18
Net boak value at 26 june 2010 55
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Notes to the accounts

25 June 2011
11 Tangible fixed assets
Leasehold Leasehold Plant
propertias properuies vehictes Fixtures Asgets
Freehold aver under and and under
properties 30 years 50 years containers fittings constructon Total
£000 £000 £000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000

Valuation or cost
At 26 June 2010 150 950 942 6153 29312 38602 117 227 076
Additions 4112 - 147 800 4045 837 9943
Disposals {1,786} - - (329) (3 808) - (5923}
Transfers 1 - 4 72 87 {174) -
At 25 june 2011 153 287 942 6304 29 855 38926 1780 231094
Accumulated depreciation
At 26 June 2010 3905 30 2151 18 304 18 154 - 42 544
Charge for year 351 17 244 2110 3,450 - G172
Impatrment 1,325 - 68 - 172 350 1915
On disposals {36) - - (325) {3 269} - {3630
At 25 June 2011 5 545 47 2463 20089 18 507 350 47 001
Net book values
At 25 June 2011 147 742 895 3,841 9,766 20,419 1.430 184 093
At 26 June 2010 147 045 912 4002 11008 20,448 1117 184,532

Ineluded in additions 15 £72 000 (2010 £76 000) of own labour capitalised

Disposals includes an amount of £2,932,000 in raspect of fully depreciated items

The freehotd licensed properttes were revalued individually at open market value on an existing use basis as at 28 June 1997 by the Company s own professionally

qualified staff In accordance with the transitional provisions set out in FRS 15, the revalued amounts adjusted for subsequent disposals have been retaned

Valuations of £55 588 000 are included i the valuation or cost of the freehold properties at 25 June 2011 (2010 £57 071000}

If they had not been revalued freehold properties would have been carned in the balance sheet at 25 June 2011 at

on 2010
£ 000 £ 000
Cost 129807 127026
Accurmidated depreciation {4,884) (3 244)
Net book amount 124,923 123 782

The Company has entered into certain operating leases as lessor The gross cost of assets held for use under these leases amounted to £17 737 000
(2010 £16 225 000) and the related accurnulated depreciation charges amounted to £392 000 {2010 £240 000} and the aggregate rentals receivable amounted

ta £826 000 {2010+ £756 000)

AR impairment toss was recegmsed in the year of £1915 000 in respect of 13 individual pubs (2010 £450 000 and five pubs) Imparment was assessed at the income
generating unit level considered to be on the basis of each indnadual pub Whether an asset was impawred or not was determined by comparing the carrying value
against Its estimated recoverable amaunt The recoverable amount was taken as the higher of either the net realisable value or its value in use The value In use was
determined by conducting a net present value review of all relevant cash flows from the asset The pre-tax discount rate used in this review was 8 72% (2010 9 67%}
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12 Investments and laans

2011 2010

€ 000 £ 000

tnvestment 1 subsidianes 101 101
Loans to customers 1541 1756
1642 1857

a Investments in subsidianes

Principal subsidiary undertakings Holding Proportion Held  Nature of buuness
Royal Albion Hotel (Broadstars) Limited E1 ordinary shares 10096 Darmant
Caremill Limited £1 ordinary shares 100% Darmant
Both the Royal Albion Hotel {Broadstars) Limited and Carermill Livited are registered companies in England and Wales
b Loans to customers
2011 010
£ 000 £000
At 26 June 2010 1,756 2009
Addiions 323 213
Redempuions (254) (247)
Loan Discounts (2B4) (219}
At 25 June 2011 1.541 1756
¢ The matunty profile of the loans s
2011 2010
£ 000 { 000G
Recoverable < 1 year 55 92
Recoverable 1-5 years 754 699
Recoverable > 5 years 732 965
1.541 1,756

Of these loans £200 000 is expectad to be repaid in cash and £1 341000 15 expected to be repaid by offset against discounts to be earned by customers (2010
£243 000 and £1 513 000 respectively) The level of discounts awarded and the interest and fees charged depends on the trading performance of each customer

against indvidual targets

13 Stock
2011 0
£ 000 £000
Raw materials and consurnables 1,661 171
Work i progress 320 305
Finished goods including goods for resale 2862 2831
4843 4847
The replacement cost of stocks approximates to the vatue at which they are stated in the accounts
14 Debtors
2011 200
£ 000 £ 000
Trade debtors 16 164 14675
Other debtars 433 579
Prepayments 1,746 1776
18,343 17030
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Notes to the accounts 25 June 2011

1§ Creditors amounts faling due within one year

201 2010
£ 000 £ 000
Trade creditors 5682 57
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings 101 101
Corporation tax 1585 1243
Other tax and social security 6201 5265
Accruals and deferred Income 4031 4,295
Trade deposits 1,968 2038
Other creditors 293 159
19 861 18 892
16 Bank Loans and overdrafts
20m 2010
£ 000 £ 000
Bank loans 70,000 74,063
Less loan issue costs {494) (663}
69,506 73,394

The bark loans comprise a 20 year term loan of £60m arranged in Aprit 2007 and a five year term oan of £15m aranged in May 2009 of which we have repaid
£5m to leave £10m outstanding at 25 June 2011 The 20 year term loan 15 hedged by interest rate swap contracts which are referred 10 1n note 26 Both loans were
provided by the Royal Bank of Scotland plc and Lloyds Banking Group ple

The £60m loan i1s repayable in five instalments of £ 6m payable every year cormmenang on 31 December 2021 with the outstanding balance besng repayable on
31 Decenber 2026 The remaining £10m balance of the £15m five year term loan 15 repayable on 22 May 2014

The Campany also has a £10m five year revoiving credit facility that matures in May 2014 and a £5m commuitted overdraft facllity that 1s renewable in June 2012
At the year end there were no drawings on etther the revolving credit faciiity or the overdraft.

The bank loans and overdraft are repayable as follows

2011 010
£ 000 £ 000
Amounts payable on demand or within one year - 937
Amaunts payable in 2-5 years 10000 14 063
Amaounis payable in over five years 60 000 60000
70,000 75000
The Company s bank loans and overdrafts are secured by a first floating charge over the Company s assets
17 Capital commitments
Contracts for capital expenditure not provided for in the accounts amounted to E355 000 (2010 £205 000)
18 Other financial commutments
Land and Plant and Land and Plant and
buitdings machinery buildings machtnery
201 zom 2010 2010
£ 000 £000 £ 000 £000
Annual commitments under nan-cancellable operating leases which expire
Within 1 year - 47 79 25
Within 2-5 years Ele) 231 318 169
After § years 2,222 - 2106 -
2,531 278 2,503 194
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19 Contingent Liabilities

The Camnpany has guaranteed a mortgage totalling £49 000 (2010 £50 000) advanced by a building soctety to a free trade licensee The Company has a charge over

the mortgaged property the value of which exceeds the guarantee provided

20 Provision for Liabibties — deferred tax

201 010
£000 £000
As at 26 june 2010 4919 4878
{Credited)/¢charged in the year (303) 41
As at 25 June 2011 4,616 4919
Analysis of deferred taxation 201 200
£000 £000
Accelerated capital allowances 4,573 4,888
Other tirrung differences 43 Ell
4616 4919
21 Share capital
20 010
£ 000 £000
3 Authonsed
12 874 400°'A ardinary shares of £1 each 12,874 12874
68 000000 B ordinary shares of 2p each 1360 1360
14,234 14234
b Allotted and fully paid
11 457,500 'A ordinary shares of £1 each 11,458 11458
&8 000,000 B ordimnary shares of 2p each 1360 1360
12818 12818

A and ‘B ordinary shares have the same rights except B ordinary shares may only be transferred to a shareholder s immediate famity or other existing holders of

‘B ordinary shares

22 Reserves

Share Revaluation Own shares Prefit & loss

premuum reserve held account Total

£ 000 £000 £ 000 £000 £000
8alance at 26 June 2010 1439 14490 {1.254) 90,467 105142
Profit for the period - - - 4 395 4,395
Dwvidends pad - - - (2 958) (2,958)
Transfer of realised revaluation - {444) - 444 -
Accried share-based payments - - - 147 147
Distribution of gwn shares - - 29 (29) -
Unconditionally vested - - 370 (370) -
Balance at 25 June 2011 1,439 14,046 (855) 92,096 106,725

The Company held 69 000 £1'A’ ordinary shares at 25 June 2011 with a market value of £593 000 {2010 184,082 and £1,335000) 50 235 of the own shares held
are allocated ta employees under the Share Incentive Plan and a further 98 095 have vested unconditionally and as such are no longer treated as own shares held
(2010 52 831 and B7 896 respectively) 61 182 of these shares can be distnbuted to the employees free of tax (2010-50391)

www shepherdneame co uk
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23 Reconailiation of movements in shareholders’ funds

2o 2010
£000 £000
Sharehalders funds at the beginning of the year as previously reported 117 960 114 505
Profit after taxation 4395 6353
Ordinary dwidends paid (2 958) {2 900)
Accrued share-based payments 147 346
Purchase of own shares - (344)
Movemnent dunng the year 1584 3455
Shareholders funds at the end of the year 119,544 117960
24 Directors interests
The interests of the Directors in the Company's shares at 25 [une 2011 (26 June 2010) are as follows
A ordinary shares B ordmary shares
Benefitial As frustees Under SIP* Benehicral As trustees
G HA Barnes 201 15,956 - 1184 101 600 -
20190 15172 - 1712 69,550 -
OW A Barnes 20Mm 55396 - - 610,130 -
20190 55396 - - 610,130 -
N | Bunting 201 6050 - 1,770 - -
2010 6050 - 1542 - -
GRCraig 2011 250 - 688 - -
2010 250 - 472 - -
TW Falcon 2011 390 - 208 - -
2010 350 - - - -
K R Littlefarr 201 1.810 - 2607 - -
2010 1810 - 2343 - -
) B Neame 201 66,090 163,807 2™ 1762 300 1286282
2010 67 540 173615 2 369 1737800 779,182
R L Nteol 201 117 BOO 167,332 - 431,900 1,414,162
2010 117 800 336170 - 398 350 3532012
M Templeman 201 B 905 - - - -
2010 8905 - - - -

The beneficial holdings of A ordinary shares excludes shares awarded under the Employee Share Incentive Plan {3IP) that have not been transferred into the
Directors names but are held in trust These shares are disclosed separately above The holdings under the SIP were allocated in January 2003, 2004, 2005 2006 and

November 2006, 2007 2008 and 2010 and are held in trust for a qualifying period of three years before ewnership vests unconditionally (see note 25a}

* benefrcialty held
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Options over the Company s A ordinary shares held by Directors at 25 June 2011 (26 June 2010) are as follows

Prce at
exercise Exencise Date from
date price which Expiry
A1 2010 Grnted Exercised Forfeited At 2011 £ £ exercisable date
GHA Barmes 468 468 * 100 26/10/10  26/10/17
1951 (1,951) - i 160 26/10/10  26/10/17
4437 4437 b 160 31/10/11 31/10M18
3230 3230 b 100 30/10/12  30/10/79
- 4235 4235 i 100 29/10/13  29/10/20
10086 4235 - (1,951} 12,370
N ) Bunting 409 409 . 100 26/10/10  26/10/17
1707 {1707} - i 100 26/10/10 26/10M17
4437 4,437 b 100 31119/11 3171018
3,230 3,230 b 100 30/10/12  30/10/19
- 4235 4235 b 100 29/10/13  29/10/20
9783 4235 - aren 1z
GR Craig 66 66 * 160 27/10/09  27/10/16
468 463 = 100 26/10/10  26/10/17
1951 (1,857) - b 100  26/10/110  26/10/17
4437 4,437 b 100 31110/11 311018
3230 3230 > 100 30/10/12  30/10/19
- 4,235 4,235 > 100 29/10/13  29/10/20
10,152 4,235 - (1,957) 12,436
TW Falcon 610 610 > 100 310 3110118
3230 3,230 .* 100 30/10472  30/10/19
- 4235 4235 b 100 29/10/13  29/10/20
3840 4235 - - 8075
K R Littlefaw 563 563 . 100 26/10/30  26/10M17
2,346 (2.346) - bl 100 26/10/1C  26/16/117
423 423 * 100 31110/ 31/10M18
5335 533 i 100 3110451 21/10118
3884 3884 - 100 30/7%0/12  30/10119
- 5092 5,092 b 100 291713 29/10420
12 551 5092 - (2346) 15,297
] B Neame 750 (750) - * 880 100 26/10/10  26/10/17
3,128 (3128) - " 100 26/10/10  26/10M17
1121 1121 . 100 310/M1 31/10/18
7119 718 .- 100 31710/ 3110118
5178 5178 i 100 3010412 30/30M19
- 6,789 6,789 i 100 29/10/13  29/10/20
17 296 6789 {750) {3 128) 20 207
Total 63708 28821 {750) {(11083) 80696

* Pnmary share option rights under the Shepherd Neame 2005 Restricted Share Scheme {see note 25¢)

** Secondary share option rights under the Shepherd Neame 2005 Restncted Share Scherne {see note 25¢)

The exercise of the pnimary share options 15 conditional upon Directors remaining in employment with the Company for three years from the date of grant of

the options

The exercise of the performance and secondary share options 1s conditional upon the achievement of certain perfermance criteria in the finangial years ending in
the three years following the grant and upon Directors remaining i employment with the Company for three years from the daze of grant of the options
The market price of the shares at 25 June 2011 was £8 60 (26 June 2010- £7 25) and the range during the year was £7 25 to £8 825 (2010 £7 15 to £9. 90}
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25 Share-based payment

a The Shepherd Neame Employee Share Incentive Plan

The Shepherd Neame Employee Share Incentive Plan (SIP) 1s open to all employees with 18 months service at the award date A free award of shares based on
length of service and salary and subject ta a maximum of £3 000 was made to all eligible employees in January 2003 2004 2005 2006 and November 2006,
2007 2008 and 2010 No award was made in 2009 Participants are entitled to these free shares from three years after the date of the award if they remain in the

Company s employment
The Company did not purchase any shares for the Employee Share Incentive Plan in either 2011 or 2010

The following table sllustrates the number and movements in shares in the year

2011 2010

Nymber Number

Qutstanding shares at 26 June 2010 140,727 169035
Cranted duning the year 25134 -
Forferted dunng the year (1301) (2.175)
Distributed during the year {16,230) {26 133)
Oustanding shares at 25 June 2011 148 330 140,727
Distributable at 25 June 2011 98 095 8789

The employees do not have to make any payment for the award of shaces under the Plan As such the weighted average exercise pnce ts rul
The weighted average share price at date of distribution for the shares distnbuted dunng the year s £8 517 (2010- £8 206)

The weighted average fair value of the shares granted 1n November 2010 was £8 75 No shares were granted i the year to 25 June 2011 The fair value taking into

account the terms and conditions upon which the shares were granted, equates to the market price a1 the date of grant
The expense recognised for share-based payments made under SIiP i respect of employee services duning the year to 25 June 201115 £151 000 {2010

b The Shepherd Neame 1995 Restricted Share Scheme
The Company has operated a restricted share scheme for Senior Managers and Directors including the highest paid Director and three other Directors

£253000)

Under the schemne primary opttons were awarded which are exercisable three years after they are awarded The Directors were atso granted additional performance
options which are exercisable three years after they were awarded if the Company achiaves certain performance cnitena in relation to growth of profits in excess of RPI

The contractual life of each option granted 1s seven years There are no cash setilernent alternatives
During the year the Company did not purchase any shares for this scheme (2010 1633 at an average cost of £7 61)

The following table illustrates the number and movements in share options in the year

201 201 2010 2010

Number Weighted average Number  Weighted average

exercise pnce exercise price

Cutstanding 3t 26 June 2010 1,006 £00001 5097 £0D010
Exercised - - (4091} E00014
Forfeited during the year {420) £0 0001 - -
Cutstanding options at 25 June 2011 586 £0 0001 1006 £00001
Exercisable at 25 June 2011 586 £0 0001 1,006 £00001

The exescise price for options outstanding at the end of the year was £0 0001
This scheme ceased in October 2005 and ne further awards have been made under it since that date

No expense was recognised for share-based payments made under the Shepherd Neame 1995 Restricted Share Scheme in respect of employee services during the

year to 25 June 2011 {201¢ nil)

No options ware exercised in the year The weighted average share pnice at date of exercise for aptions exercised in the year to 26 June 2010 was £8 71
The options outstanding at 25 June 2011 had a remairung contractual ke of 03 years
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¢ The Shepherd Neame 2005 Restncted Share Scheme

The Company operates a restricted share scheme for Senior Managers and Directors including the highest paid Director and five other Directors

This scheme replaced the 1995 Restricted Share Scheme fallowing its cessation in 2005 The 2005 schere provides for the grant of primiary and secondary share
Options under sumular terms and restricted to the same maximum Limits as those that applied to the 1995 scheme 1t was updated to reflect changes in tax legistation
and market practice since the 1995 scheme was adopted

During the year the Company did not purchase any shares for this scheme {2010 purchased 38 651'A ordinary shares at an average cost of £8 575 per share)

The contractual life of each option granted 15 10 years

The following table illustrates the number and movernents in share options in the year

20mM o1 2010 2010

Number  Weighted average Number  Weighted average

exercise pnce exerase price

Outstanding at 26 June 2010 67 547 £100 51122 £100
Granted duning the year 28821 £100 21982 £100
Exercised {750) E100 (3707) £100
Forfeited durtng the year (11083) £100 {1850) £100
Qutstanding options at 25 June 2011 84,535 £100 67 547 £100
Exercisable at 25 June 2011 5813 £100 2051 £100

The weighted average fair value of the options granted dunng the year was £7 9989 (2010 £8 3718) The exerase price for all options outstanding at the end of the
year was £100 and the options outstanding at 25 June 2017 had a remaining average contractual life of 8 2 years

The fair value of the equity-settled share options granted under the scheme (s estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes optian pricing model taking
Into account the terms and conditions upen which the instruments were granted The following table lists the inputs to the model used for the years ended 25 june
2011 and 26 June 2010

zo11 2010
Expected share price volatility 50% 50%
Risk-free interest rate 5475% 5475%
Expected life of option {years} 65 65
Weighted average share price £B 675 £305

A credit of £4 000 was recogmsed for share-based payments made under the Shepherd Neame 2005 Restricted Share Scheme w respect of employee services during
the year to 25 June 2011{2010 charge of £93 000}

26 Financial instruments

a Capital management

The capital structure of the Company consists of bank loans {see note 16}, cash and shareholders equity compnsing share capital reserves and retained earnings
(see notes 21 22 and 23} In managing its capital the Company s main objectives are to ensure that it 1s able to continue to operate as a going concern as noted

in the Report of the Directors and to maximise its return to 1ts shareholders through a combination of capital growth and distributions The Campany seeks to
maintain a ratio of debt to equity that balances the nsk and returns at an acceptable (evel and maintains sufficent funds to meet its working capital and investment
requirements and comply with bank lending covenants

The Board of Directors review the Company s dwidend policy and funding requirements regularly throughout the year

b Categores of frnancial assets and liabilities

The Company's financial assets include loans to customers designated as financial assets (see note 12), cash and trade debtors and other debtors in current assets {see
note 14) Its financial liablities mclude trade creditars and other payables in current Labilities (see note 15} and short and leng-term bank borrowings (see note 16)

¢ Financial nsks

The main risks assocrated with the Company s financeal assets and liabilitres are interest rate nsk, hquidity risk, credit nisk and forexgn currency nsk as noted below

The policies for managing these nsks are regularly reviewed and agreed by the Board of Directors

In certain limited circumstances the company uses dervative instruments to change the economic charactenstics of its finanaal nstrurments 1315 Company policy
not to enter into or trade in financial istruments for speculative purposes

www shepherdneanie co uk
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26 Financial instruments continued

Interest rate nsk

Currently it 1s Company policy to manage the cost of its borrowings by ustng a muxture of fixed and vanable interest rates Debt s represented by a 20 year term
loan a five year term loan a five year revalving credit facility and a short-term comrmitted overdraft faciity all of which are secured by a first floating charge over the
assets of the Company They all bear interest at vanable rates based on LIBOR or National Westminster Bank base rate The interest on the total facility of

£60m available under the 20 year term bank loan 1s fixed by means of interest rate swap centracts which run for the same penod as the loan as disclosed below
Interest 1s not fixed on the five year term loan in order to take advantage of the current low shest-term rate of interest and allow early repayment of the loan should
the opporturity or need arise without the nisk of a charge to profit from early terrmination of swap contracts Interest on drawings on the revolving credit faolity and
short-term overdraft facility are not fixed s it 15 Company policy to have short-term borrawing on a vanable rate basis

Ligquidity nisk

The Company manages its lquidity nsk by monitonng cash receipts and payments and prepanng rolling cash flow forecasts fram which to predict short and long-
term funding requirements and ensure that borrewing facilities are available if required and that covenants wn respect of bank loans are not contravened Caprtal
expenditure Is approved by the Board and investment appraisal models used to evaluate proposed expenditure It 1s currently the Company's policy to finance

the majority of its business needs by means of leng and medium-term bank loans amounting to £70m which were fully drawn at the year end The balance of s
requirerments 15 provided by a five year revolving credit loan facthty of £10m which matures in May 20714 and a committed overdraft facility of £5m, which matures
in june 2012 The size of the facility s regularly reviewed and the overdraft facility 1s renewed annually At the year end none (2010 nene) of the revolving credit
loan facility and none {2010 none) of the overdraft fachity was being utibsed

Credit nsk

The Company trades only with recogrused creditworthy third parties It 1s the Company's policy that all customers who wish te trade on credit terms are subject

to credit venfication procedures and are subject to credit imits to control debt exposure 1t has not been possible to maintain credit insurance at apprepriate cost
the current market As market conditions improve the Directors will reconsider whether 1t 1s appropriate te purchase credit msurance In addition recevable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis The growth of the Company s business with natsonat retailers and as a contract brewer has increased the concentration of credn
nsk. However the Board of Directors consider that the credit nisk from these customers 1s relatively low

With respect to credit nsk ansing from other financial assets of the Company which compnse cash and cash equivalents the Company s expasure to credit nisk anises
fram the default of a counterparty with a maximum exposure equal to the carrymg value amount of these instruments

Foreign currency nsk

The principal finanzial instruments are denorrunated in sterling and the vast majonty of the Compary's cperations are undertaken within the UK Consequently

the foreign currency risk 1s low except for those infrequent occasions when the Company purchases plant and equipment denorminated in foreign currency In these
arcumstances 12 15 the policy of the Company to enter into forward exchange contracts to fix future payments as they fall due At the year end the Company had no
outstanding contracts te purchase foreign currency

Interest rate profile
The interest rate profile of the borrowing 1s

011 2011 2010 2000

201 Weighted Weighted 2030 Weighted Weighted

Notianal average average period Notonal average average penad

pnacipal nterest rate for which rate principal nterest rate for which rate
E000 {%) fixed {years} £ 00O (9%} fixed (years)

Bank loan 60 000 514 1575 60,000 579 1675

Medium-term borrowings outstanding at 25 June 2011 ameunied te £10,000,000 (2010 £15,000,000) comprising a five year term loan bearing interest at between
275% and 5% above LIBOR in years 1-3 and between 2 75% and 5 5% above LIBOR in years 4 and 5

There were 1o short-term barrowings outstanding at 25 June 2011 (26 June 2010 rul} The overdraft facility bears interest at 2 5% {2010- 2 5%) above Natonal
Westrminster Bank base rate which was 05% at 25 June 2011 {26 June 2010 0 5%} and the Revolving Credit Faciity bears interest at between 2 75% and 5 00%
above LIBOR

Three month LIBOR was 0:83% at 25 June 2011 (26 June 2010 © 73%)
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d Fair values of finanoial assets and Liabilities

The fair value of trade debtors and creditors included 1n net current assets s equivalent to the balance sheet carrying values Loans to customers (see note 12) are
financial assets camed at book vatue in the balance sheet It 1s not practicable for the Company to estimate the fairvalue of the assets with sufficient reliabitity as
the cash flows inherent in themn relate to improved sales revenue in future years the timing of which cannot be determined

set gut below 15 3 companson by category of book values and fair values of all the Company's other financiat assets and lrabslities

Book value Falr value Book vatue Fair value
201 201 2010 2010
E 000 £ 000 £000 £000
Primary financial instruments
Variable rate bank loan {70,000) (70,000) (75 000) (75 000)
Cash 4 588 4 588 7781 7781
Denvative financial instruments held to manage the nterest rate profile
Interest rate swaps ~ deferred - (11,737) - {11964}

The fair values have been calculated with reference to the expected future cash flows at prevailing iterest rates

27 Pension commitments

The Company operates two defined contribution schemes The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the Company in independently administered
funds The charge for pension cost represents contributions payable by the Company to the funds and amounts to £913 000 (Z010 £888 000} Contributions of
£116 000 (2010 £110,000) were payable to the scheme at the year end All Executive Duectors are members of one of the Company s defined contnbution schemes

The Company also meets the pension costs of certain former employees which have not been funded through the pension schemes The amount of this unfunded

liability 15 not significant
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Financial calendar and company advisors

Financial calendar

2011 2012

25 June Financial yeas end March

7 October Shares traded ex-dwvidend Apnl

12 Octaber Recosd date for final dividend * 30 June

28 October Annual General Meeting and payment Early October

of Final Dividend
24 December  Half year end

* Shareholders on the register at this date

Company advisors

Registrars

Computershare Investor Services plc

PO Box B2

The Pavilions, Bndgwater Road

Bristol

BS99 6ZY

Tel, 0870 702 0000

Dedicated Shareholder Tel 0870 707 1291

Financial PR

Kreab Gavin Anderson
Scandinavian House
2-6 Cannon Street
London

EC4M 6X|
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Late October

Auditors

Delaitte LLP

2 New Street Square
London

EC4A 3B2

Bankers

National Westminster Bank plc
13 Market Place

Faversham

Kent

ME13 7EF

Announcement of intenm results
Paymant of intenm dividend
Financial year end

Preliminary results announcement
Annual General Meeting

Stockbrokers

P Morgan Cazenove Lmited
20 Mocrgate

London

EC2 6DA

Charles Stanley Secunties
131 finsbury Pavement
Londan

EC2A INT

James Sharp & Co
Exchange House
39 Knowsley Street
Bury

Lancashire
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Notice of meeting

Notice 1s hereby given that the ninety-seventh Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at the Pansh Church of St Mary of Chanity Church Road

Faversham on Friday 2B October 2011 at 12 00 noon for the following purposes

Resolution 1
To receive the Annual Report and Accounts and the reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon

Resolution 2
To dectare a Final Dividend upon the A and B ordinary shares

Resolution 3
To propose the re-etection of Mr O W A Barnes as a Director

Resolution 4
To propose the re-election of Mr N | Bunting as a Director

Resolution 5
To propose the re-election of Mr T W Falcen as a Director

Resolution &
To reappeint the Auditors and autharise the Directors to fix their remuneration

By Order of the Board
F ] Lester

Secretary

17 Court Street
Faversham

Kent

5 October 2011

The Voting Record Date 1s Wednesday 26 October 2011 and shareholders should be registered in the Company s Regster of Members by the close of business on

that date in order to vote at the Meeting

Members entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting are entitled 10 appoint a proxy 1o exercise all or any of their rightstc attend speak and vote

an their behalf at the Meeting and that proxy need not alsc be a member

Members may appoint more than ane proxy in relation ta a meeting, provided that each proxy 1s appointed to exercise the rights attached to a different share or

shares held

Forms of Proxy for use at the Annual General Meeting are circulated to Registered Shareholders with the Annual Report and Accounts and in order to be valid
should be completed and returned to the Company s Registrars Computershare Investor Services PLC The Pavilions Bridgwater Road, Bristol BS99 67 as saon as
possible and in any event so as to arrive by not later than 12 00 noon on Wednesday 26 October 2071 Members should contact the Comparny's Share Registrars

for further Forms of Proxy or photocapy the farm as required

The return of the Form of Proxy to the Company s Registrars will not prevent a member from attending and voting in person at the Meeting

Any corporation which 1s a member can appomnt one or more corporate representatives who may exeruse on its behalf all of its powers as a member provided

they do not do 50 In relation to the same shares

The Notice of the Meeting together with other information for shareholders as regards the Annual General Meeting will be displayed on the Company s website
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Five year financial summary

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
£000 £ 000 £000 £000 (1]
Profit and loss
Turnover 121 346 115 356 109 468 101718 100047
Operating profit before exceptional items 12 252 11857 9,484 12561 13851
Net finance charges (4.271) {4 581} (3 783} (3 468) (3326)
Exceptianal charges (1915) (450) (1749) {16586) (1984)
Profit on sale of property 419 1887 2989 1279 3031
Profit before taxation 6,485 8713 6941 8676 11572
Taxation {2 090) {2,360) (1 258) (2 425} (2.280)
Earnings avatlable to shareholders 4,395 6,353 5683 6,251 9292
Dwvidends
Intenim and finals for the year {3045) {2953) (2,875} (2 868} (2748)
Percentage on nominal share value 238% 231% 22 5% 22 5% 215%
Drvidend cover 14 22 20 2z 34
Dwvidend cover {excluding exceptional terns) 19 17 14 22 28
Basic earnings per £1 nominal share value {p} based on
Earnings avavlable to shareholders 344 499 447 493 734
Earnings (excluding exceptional items) 462 395 326 486 605
Shareholders' funds employed
Share capital 12818 12818 12818 12818 12818
Share premum 1439 1439 1439 1439 1439
Revaluation reserve 14,046 14 450 14 806 16269 16228
Revenue reserves 91241 89213 85 442 80646 77175
115 544 117 960 114,505 111172 107,660
Represented by assets
Fixed assets 185 753 186 444 150,747 173515 164771
Current assets 27774 29 658 21,780 22257 20511
213 527 216 102 212,527 195772 185282
Liabilities
Short-term 19 861 19829 19088 20628 24499
Long-term 69,506 73 394 74056 59 409 49380
Provisions 4616 4919 4873 4563 3743
93983 98 142 98 022 84600 77622
Net assets 119,544 117,960 114 505 113,172 107 660
Net assets per share (£) 933 920 893 867 8 40
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